
 
CDRPA Meeting Agenda August 24th, 2021 Page 1 of 2 

 
 

 
  

                   
Working Together to Enhance the Economic Vitality of North Central Washington 

 
 

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 

Meeting Agenda 
August 24th, 2021 

9:00 am  
 
 

In order to maximize social distancing related to COVID-19, the meeting 
 will be held at the CTC and remotely using Zoom Virtual Conference. 

   

I. CALL TO ORDER 

 
*Note: When the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority meeting is called to order, the Port of Chelan 
County and Port of Douglas County meetings are simultaneously called to order. 

  

II. INTRODUCTIONS 

 

III. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

 

IV. CONSENT AGENDAS 

 

CDRPA: Approval of Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Minutes of August 10th, 2021 

Commission Meeting; CDRPA Resolution No. 2021-15 Voiding Check #8274 and #8404; 

and July 2021 Commission Calendar 

 

V. PRESENTATIONS 

 NCWEDD – Alyce Brown 

 

VI. CDRPA ACTION ITEMS 

(1) First Amendment to Interlocal Agreement – Pangborn Airport & Douglas County Fire 

District No. 2 

(2) Authorizing Greater Wenatchee Irrigation District to Connect to Pangborn Industrial 

Sewer Line – Granting of Easement & Authorizing Hook-Up within Pangborn 

Industrial Service Area 

(3) Jet-A Aviation Fuel Truck Bid Award 

(4) Authorization to Seek Bids – CTC Building Core & Shell Improvements 

(5) Authorization to Seek Bids – Purchase of Surplus Data Center Equipment 

(6) Cashmere Mill District Beaver Mitigation Plan – Preauthorization for CEO to Award 

Contract 

(7) Partners in Economic Development Application – Douglas County US 2/97 & 

Cascade Ave. Project 

 

VII. CDRPA INFORMATIONAL ITEMS (Board may take action on any items listed)  

(8) Budget vs. Actual as of June 30, 2021  

(9) Completion of Boundary Line Adjustment – Pangborn Airport 

(10) S.P.O.R.T. Update 

(11) Chelan County PUD 5th Street Marketing Update 

(12) The Trades District – Financing Plan Update 

(13) Pangborn Airport Air Service Update  

 

 



 
CDRPA Meeting Agenda August 24th, 2021 Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 

VIII. MISCELLANEOUS STAFF REPORTS 

 CEO 

 Director of Finance & Administration 

 Director of Airports 

 Director of Economic & Business Development 

 Public Works & Capital Projects Manager 

 Property & Maintenance Manager 

 CTC Manager 

 

IX. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

X. REVIEW CALENDAR OF EVENTS 

 

XI. ITEMS FROM BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

XII. EXECUTIVE SESSION: An Executive Session may be called during the meeting.  The 

purpose must be announced and is limited by RCW 42.30.110.  Examples include: (1) to 

discuss with legal counsel litigation, potential litigation and/or legal risks (RCW 

42.30.110(1)(i)); (2) to consider the acquisition of real estate by lease or purchase when 

public knowledge regarding such consideration would cause a likelihood of increased price 

(RCW 42.30.110(1)(b)); and (3) to consider the minimum price at which real estate will 

be offered for sale or lease when public knowledge regarding such consideration would 

cause a likelihood of decreased price (final action selling or leasing public property shall be 

taken in a meeting open to the public)(RCW 42.30.110(1)(c)); and (4) to evaluate the 

qualifications of an applicant for public employment or to review the performance of a 

public employee(RCW 42.30.110(1)(g)) 

 

XIII.  ADJOURN 
 

PLEASE NOTE:  The agenda is tentative only. The Board of Directors may add, delete, or postpone items and may take 
action on any item not on the agenda. The Directors may also move agenda items during the meeting. 
If you wish to address the Regional Port Authority on a non-agenda or an agenda item, please raise your hand to be 
recognized by the President.  When you have been recognized, give your name and address before your comments. 
The Board of Directors is committed to maintaining a meeting atmosphere of mutual respect and speakers are 

encouraged to honor this principal. 

 

The Port Authority office is ADA compliant. Please contact the Administrative Office at 509-884-4700 at least three (3) 

days in advance if you need any language, hearing or physical accommodation.  



CDRPA Suggested Meeting Motions  August 24, 2021 Page 1 of 2 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Board of Directors 
  SUGGESTED MOTIONS 

August 24, 2021 
 

    
IV. CONSENT AGENDAS 

 
CDRPA CONSENT AGENDA 
 
• To approve the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Consent Agenda consisting of 

Minutes of August 10th, 2021 Commission Meeting; CDRPA Resolution No. 2021-15 
Voiding Checks #8274 and #8404; and July 2021 Commission Calendar, as presented. 

 
VI.  ACTION ITEMS 

 
(1) First Amendment to Interlocal Agreement – Pangborn Airport & Douglas 

County Fire District No. 2 
 
• To approve the First Amendment to the Interlocal Agreement between Pangborn Airport 

& Douglas County Fire District No. 2, and authorize the CEO to sign. 
 

(2) Greater Wenatchee Irrigation District Sewer Hook-Up Request 
 

• To authorize a sewer easement across Airport property to Greater Wenatchee Irrigation 
District.   
 

• To authorize the CEO to enter into an agreement with Douglas County & Douglas County 
Sewer District to approve a sewer hook-up within the Pangborn Industrial Service Area. 
 

(3) Jet-A Fuel Truck Bid Award 
 

• To award the Jet-A Fuel Truck bid to Sky Mark Refuelers in the amount of 276,691.00, 
plus WWST, and authorize the CEO to sign the purchase contract. 
 

(4) Authorization to Seek Bids – CTC Building Shell & Core Improvements 
 

• To authorize the CEO to solicit bids for the CTC Building Demolition & Restoration 
Project. 
 

(5) Authorization to Seek Bids – Purchase of Surplus Data Center Equipment 
 

• To authorize the CEO to solicit proposals for the purchase of CTC surplus Data Center 
equipment. 

 

 



CDRPA Suggested Meeting Motions  August 24, 2021 Page 2 of 2 

 
 

(6) Cashmere Mill District Beaver Mitigation Project 
 

• To authorize the CEO to award a contract for Cashmere the Mill Site Beaver Mitigation 
Project, contingent upon the low bid not exceeding the engineer’s estimate of $33,000.  
 

(7) Partners in Economic Development Application – Douglas County US 
2/97 & Cascade Avenue Project 
 

• To approve Douglas County’s Partners in Economic Development Grant request in the 
amount of $50,000. 



 August 10th, 2021 Page 1 of 4  

 

             
    
            

            Board of Directors 
 Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 

   Meeting Minutes 
  August 10th, 2021 

9:00 am 
 
 
 
 
Present:  Directors    
 JC Baldwin, Director    Jim Huffman, Director   
 W. Alan Loebsack, Director    Donn Etherington, Director (Zoom) 
 Rory Turner, Director  Mark Spurgeon, Director         
 
 Staff 
 Jim Kuntz, Chief Executive Officer   Monica Lough, Dir. of Finance & Admin.  
 Stacie de Mestre, Capital Projects Mgr.  Cami Harris, Executive Assistant 
 Tricia Degnan, CTC Manager (Zoom)  Ron Russ, Property Mgr. (Zoom) 
 Sarah Deenik, Communications Coord. (Zoom) Quentin Batjer, Legal Counsel 
 Bealinda Tidd, Accounting Specialist (Zoom)  Esther McKivor, Acct. Specialist (Zoom) 
 Laura Camarillo Reyes, CTC Asst. (Zoom)   
    
 Guests    

Erik Howe, RH2 (Zoom)   Erin McCardle, City of Chelan (Zoom) 
Bob Goedde, City of Chelan (Zoom)  Ellyn Freed, Forte Architects 
Flint Hartwig (Zoom)  Jeff Kirkley, Pangborn Café (Zoom) 
Shilian Xiao, Pangborn Café (Zoom)  Jeff Wilkens, CDTC   
Riley Shewak, CDTC  Evelyn Lundeen, Maul Foster (Zoom) 
Ben Johnson, Maul Foster (Zoom)  Lisa Pritzl, Maul Foster (Zoom) 
Ray Dobbs (Zoom)  Sydney Gonzales, Wen. World (Zoom)   

 
The Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority (CDRPA) Meeting was called to order 
at 9:00 am. Due to COVID-19 restrictions, the meeting was held at Confluence 
Technology Center and via Zoom as previously posted in the required Public 
Meeting Notice. 
 
Introductions were made.  
 
Conflict of Interest: None 
 
CDRPA CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
The Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Consent Agenda consisting of minutes July 27th, 
2021 Commission Meeting; and Check Register Pages #2021-24-#2021-28 including 
Electronic Transfers, was presented and the following action was taken:  
 

 
Motion No.  08-01-21 CDRPA 

  Moved by:    JC Baldwin 
  Seconded by:  Mark Spurgeon 

To approve the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Consent Agenda 
consisting of minutes of July 27th, 2021 Commission Meeting; and 
Check Register Pages #2021-24-#2021-28, including Electronic 
Transfers, as presented. 
      
     Motion passed 6-0. 
            

 
 



 August 10th, 2021 Page 2 of 4  

 
 
 
PORT OF DOUGLAS COUNTY CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
The Port of Douglas County Consent Agenda consisting of Check Register Page #2021-04, 
was presented and the following action was taken:  
 

 
Motion No.  08-02-21 PODC 

  Moved by:    Jim Huffman 
  Seconded by:  Mark Spurgeon 

To approve the Port of Douglas County Consent Agenda consisting of 
Check Register Page #2021-04, as presented. 
      
     Motion passed 3-0. 

 
PRESENTATIONS: 
 
Pangborn Café – Jeff Kirkley & Shilian Xiao provided information on their background and 
vision for their new café at Pangborn Airport. They thanked the Board for the opportunity and 
support. 
 
Chelan Douglas Transportation Council – Jeff Wilkens & Riley Shewak provided an update 
on the City of Wenatchee’s Confluence Parkway Project. The project was recently awarded a 
$92.0 million Federal Grant. The remainder of the funding for the project ($120 million) will 
likely need to come from a State of Washington Transportation Package. Wilkens & Shewak 
also provided information on the SR 28 Corridor Study Project. They believe the study needs 
to incorporate economic growth projections in Western Grant County. The Board concurred. 
 
S.P.O.R.T. Wenatchee – Ellyn Freed & Flint Hartwig provided an update on the status of 
S.P.O.R.T. Wenatchee’s purchase of Lineage North. Preliminary plans have been submitted to 
the City of Wenatchee and they anticipate final plans will be submitted by November 1st.  
Kuntz reported the Purchase & Sale Agreement expired on August 2nd after S.P.O.R.T. failed 
to secure financing and file a completed building permit with the City of Wenatchee, as 
required in the Purchase & Sale Agreement. Kuntz suggested that instead of setting another 
hard deadline, S.P.O.R.T. should continue to work on financing and building plans and when 
complete approach the Regional Port to re-instate the Purchase & Sale Agreement. The Board 
concurred.  
 
CDRPA ACTION ITEMS: 
 
Partners in Economic Development Grant Request – Manson Park & Recreation 
District – Kuntz reviewed the Partners in Economic Development Grant Request from the 
Manson Park & Recreation District for the Manson Marina Breakwater Replacement Project. 
The request is for a total of $25,000 with half being funded in 2021, and the remainder in 
2022. Kuntz noted there is $50,000 remaining in the “placeholder account” to fund the 
request. Discussions ensued and the following action was taken:  
 
  

Motion No.  08-03-21 CDRPA  
  Moved by:    JC Baldwin 
  Seconded by:  Mark Spurgeon  

To approve the Manson Park & Recreation District Partners in Economic 
Development Grant request in the amount of $25,000. 
  

           Motion passed 6-0. 
 
Director Loebsack called for a 5-minute break at 10:25 am; Meeting reconvened at 
10:30 am. 
 
 



 August 10th, 2021 Page 3 of 4  

 
INFORMATIONAL ITEMS: 
 
Washington State Department of Ecology – Remedial Action Grant/Rock Island 
Silicon Smelter Site – Kuntz provided information on the $1.0 million Remedial Action Grant 
the Regional Port recently received from the Washington State Department of Ecology for the 
former Rock Island Silicon Smelter Site. Kuntz reviewed the estimated cost of redevelopment 
of the site as previously presented to the Board at an April meeting.  The grant would build on 
previous investigations and fully fund the site characterization and perhaps substantial clean-
up activities. Ben Johnson & Lisa Pritzl (Maul Foster) provided further information concerning 
the grant and site.  The Board was not supportive of the Regional Port accepting the grant 
and suggested reaching out to the City of Rock Island to determine their interest in accepting 
the grant. 
 
Chelan Airport Joint Meeting – Kuntz reviewed a proposed September 28th joint meeting 
date with the City of Chelan. Per the Joint Operating Agreement between the City and the 
Regional Port, two meetings per year are required. Kuntz reviewed a potential list of topics 
and is awaiting confirmation from the City concerning the proposed date and agenda.  
            
The Trades District – Kuntz reviewed initial leasing guidelines and potential lease rates for 
the Trades District buildings at Pangborn Airport Business Park. Staff has been working with 
The Beckett Group to prepare and submit a grant request for an Economic Development 
Administration (EDA) Grant to fund a significant portion of the project. In addition to the EDA 
Grant, the Regional Port will seek funds from several other sources. Discussion ensued and 
the following action was taken:  
               

 
Motion No.  08-04-21 CDRPA 

  Moved by:    Mark Spurgeon 
  Seconded by:  Rory Turner 

To authorize the CEO to prepare & submit a grant application to the 
EDA for the Trades District Project at Pangborn Airport Business Park.  
 
     Motion passed 6-0. 

 
 
Carlos Torres Property – Kuntz presented a proposed Purchase & Sale Agreement for the 
Carlos Torres orchard property in Malaga. The following action was taken:  

 
Motion No.  08-05-21 CDRPA 

  Moved by:    Rory Turner 
  Seconded by:  Jim Huffman 

To authorize the CEO to enter into a Purchase & Sale Agreement with 
Carlos A. Torres subject to the amount not to exceed $625,800 plus 
closing costs. 
 
     Motion passed 6-0. 

 
MISC. STAFF REPORTS: 
 

 Kuntz provided information and updates including:  
• Reported on the recent Army National Guard tour of the Executive Flight building. 
• Awaiting an amended agreement with Douglas County Fire District 2 concerning 

Pangborn Airport ARFF contract. 
• Reported Douglas County PUD has rejected the Regional Port’s request to have an 

unused easement removed on the Fibro property. 
• Update on a recent meeting with Alyce Brown at the NCW Economic Development 

District.  
• The Regional Port will host a booth at the Waterville Fair; a sign-up sheet for shifts 

was circulated. 
• Reviewed potential dates for the Regional Port Annual Board Retreat; it was decided 

the date will be October 18th at 10:00 am (location TBD). 
 



 August 10th, 2021 Page 4 of 4  

 
 

Lough provided information and updates including:  
• Reviewed 2021/2022 Enduris insurance rates. 
• Researching options for Port health insurance for 2022; will bring back information at 

an upcoming meeting.       
 
de Mestre provided information and updates including:  

• Report was received on the Johnson Hangar soil testing. Some low concentrations of 
herbicide/pesticides were detected but are likely below state standards. RH2 is reviewing 
the report and will provide final findings soon. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT – An opportunity for public comment was provided; however, no public 
comments were received. 

 
REVIEW CALENDAR OF EVENTS:  Kuntz reviewed several upcoming events. 

 
ITEMS FROM BOARD OF DIRECTORS: Directors provided various updates.  
 
Meeting was adjourned at 4:45 pm. 
 
Signed and dated this 24th day of August, 2021. 

 
  
CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY 

 
 
  
  
  _________________________________ 
JC Baldwin, Director     Jim Huffman, Director 
 
          
___________________________________  _________________________________ 
Donn Etherington, Director    Mark Spurgeon, Director 
 
 

              ______________________ 
 Rory Turner, Director     W. Alan Loebsack, Director 



____________________________________________________________________________ 
Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Resolution No. 2021-15 Voiding Check 8274 and 8404 Page 1 of 1 
 

CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY 
 RESOLUTION NO. 2021-15 

RESOLUTION TO VOID CHECK NO. 8274 AND CHECK NO. 8404 
 

 

Whereas Check No. 8274 in the amount of $772.15, payable to Avis Budget Group, 
on Register Page No. 2021-18 was created and signed on May 28, 2021. 

Whereas Check No. 8404 in the amount of $141.88, payable to Wenatchee World, 
on Register Page No. 2021-19 was created and signed on June 15, 2021. 

Whereas checks were not received by payees and have not cleared the Chelan 
Douglas Regional Port Authority main checking account, and are considered to be lost in 
the mail at this time.  Check No. 8611 will replace Ck. No.8274, and Check No. 8329 
replaced Ck. No. 8404. 

Now, therefore be it resolved by the Board of Directors of the Chelan Douglas 
Regional Port Authority, a municipal corporation of the State of Washington, that Check No. 
8274 and 8404 be declared VOID. 

 

Dated this 24th day of August, 2021. 

 

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 
 

 

_____________________________  ___________________________ 
JC Baldwin, Director    Jim Huffman, Director 
 
_____________________________  ___________________________ 
Donn Etherington, Director   Mark Spurgeon, Director 
 
_____________________________  ___________________________ 
Rory Turner, Director    W. Alan Loebsack, Director 
 

 



Date Meeting Location JCB RT DE JH MS AL
7/1 Economic Dev. Meeting Ex. Flight X
7/7 Dist. 3 Commissioner Meeting Chelan Artisan Bakery X
7/7 Dist. 1 Meeting Zoom X
7/8 CDTC Meeting CTC X
7/9 Meeting w/J. Kuntz re: Agenda Ex. Flight X
7/11 Seatac to AAAE Conf. Vegas Seatac X X
7/12 AAAE Conf. Vegas Las Vegas X X
7/13 AAAE Conf. Vegas Las Vegas X X
7/13 CDRPA Board Meeting CTC X  X X  X
7/14 Vegas from AAAE Conf. to Seatac Seatac X X
7/14 NCWEDD Board Meeting Zoom X
7/14 Dedication WSDOT Aviation/Rep. Dent WSDOT Telford Helipad X
7/19 Meeting-Trent, Rory, Mark re: AAAE Ex. Flight X X
7/20 WPPA Commissioners Seminar  Zoom  X
7/20 Mark Spurgeon/Rory Turner Meeting Stones Gastropub X *X
7/20 NCW Tech Meeting Mercantile X
7/21 WPPA Commissioners Seminar  Zoom X
7/21 Upper Valley Commissioners Meeting Big Y Café X
7/21 Dist. 1 Meeting Zoom X
7/26 Pick Up Binder Ex. Flight X
7/27 CDRPA Board Meeting CTC X X X X X X
7/28 Army National Guard Tour Ex. Flight X
7/28 Downtown Possibilities Tour Lineage *X
7/29 CARB Meeting Zoom X

* denotes multiple meetings on same day
Approval 8-24-2021 Commission Meeting 

July 2021



































 
Memo 
To:  Board of Directors 

From:  Randy Asplund 

Date:  August 16, 2021 

Re:  Request by Greater Wenatchee Irrigation District for   
construction of a 2-inch diameter pressure sewer service and 
easement to connect to the Douglas County Sewer District’s 
Pangborn Industrial Park sewer system 

 Regional Port staff was recently contacted by Douglas County and 
Douglas County Sewer District (Sewer District) regarding a request 
for approval and associated easement to provide sewer service to two 
residences owned by the Greater Wenatchee Irrigation District 
(GWID).   

The reason for the request is due to the recent failure of the existing 
on-site septic system and the lack of an alternative location for a new 
drainfield for the two residences owned by GWID.  The two residences 
are located adjacent to the District office and are offered for rent to 
District employees. 

The Sewer District and GWID are proposing an alignment for the 
forcemain as shown on the attached figure.   

The proposed easement area alignment would begin just east of the 
PUD power service for the Lift Station on the north side of 8th Street 
and run north adjacent to the east easement line for the Lift Station, 
then turn west adjacent to the north line of the Lift Station easement 
until entering the existing easement for the gravity sewer main.   



2 

In return for granting the easement, it is proposed that GWID would 
waive its irrigation water segregation and review fees associated with 
the Pangborn boundary line adjustment. It is estimated the fees for 
the irrigation segregation and review by GWID to be approximately 
$2,400. 

It is staff’s recommendation the Board authorize the CEO to enter into  
negotiations and agreement with GWID regarding granting the 
proposed sewer easement and waiver of GWID fees.  

 



 

rasplund
Line

rasplund
Line

rasplund
Line

rasplund
Line

rasplund
Line

rasplund
Rectangle

rasplund
Rectangle

rasplund
Callout
Proposed 10 ft wide sewer service easement

rasplund
Callout
Proposed forcemain alignment inside existing sewer easement

rasplund
Callout
Proposed 2" sewer service forcemain

rasplund
Text Box
Proposed Sewer Forcemain Easement for Greater Wenatchee Irrigation District

rasplund
Line

rasplund
Typewriter
GWID Irrigation R/W



1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Return document to: Douglas Co. Board of Commissioners 
Document Title:  Amendment #2, Agreement Re: Allocation of Sales and Use Tax Receipts 
Reference Number  
of Related Documents:  AFN 23062971  
Grantor:  Douglas County 
Grantee:  Douglas County Sewer District #1 and Chelan / Douglas Regional Port Authority 
Legal Description: N/A 
Parcel Number(s): N/A 

 
 
 

AMENDMENT NUMBER 2 
 

AGREEMENT 
RE: ALLOCATION OF RURAL COUNTIES SALES AND USE TAX RECEIPTS 

Pangborn Industrial Service Area-Sewer Line Extension 
 
 
 This Amendment Number 2 to the July 2003 Agreement made by and among 
DOUGLAS COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Washington, hereafter 
referred to as the County, the CHELAN / DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY 
(Formerly PORT OF DOUGLAS COUNTY), a municipal corporation of the State of 
Washington, hereafter referred to as the Port, and DOUGLAS COUNTY SEWER 
DISTRICT #1, a municipal corporation of the State of Washington, hereafter referred to 
as the District: 
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, the County, the Port and the District entered into an agreement 
regarding the allocation of sales and use tax to support the extension of sanitary sewer 
service to the Pangborn Industrial Service Area; was recorded July 16, 2003 under 
Auditor’s Filing Number 3062971; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 5 of the agreement does not allow sanitary sewer 
connections for properties outside of the urban growth areas under any circumstance; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, RCW 36.70A.110(4) states, in part: “In general, it is not appropriate 
that urban governmental services be extended to or expanded in rural areas except in 
those limited circumstances shown to be necessary to protect basic public health and 
safety and the environment and when such services are financially supportable at rural 
densities and do not permit urban development”; and 
 



2 
 

 WHEREAS, the County, the Port and the District believe that it is in the public 
interest to protect basic public health and safety and the environment by allowing 
connections to the sanitary sewer system outside of the urban growth areas in 
instances where on-site septic systems have failed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Douglas County Sewer District #1 can establish policies and 
standards to assure such connections conform to RCW 36.70A.110(4). 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereby agree to amend Section 5 of the 
Agreement recorded under AFN #306271 to read as follows: 
 

5. Urban Growth Boundaries – Limitations on Connection:  The extension of 
sanitary sewer service to the PISA shall not encourage or promote urban type growth 
outside of urban growth areas established in accordance with the Washington State 
Growth Management Act, RCW Chapter 36.70A.  The District covenants and agrees 
that connections to the sewer line extension to be constructed shall be allowed solely 
within the Greater East Wenatchee Urban Growth Area (GEWAUGA) and the Pangborn 
Industrial Service Area (PISA), as the same currently exist and/or as may hereafter be 
amended.  No connections to the sewer line extension to be constructed shall be 
allowed by the District in any area that is outside both the GEWAUGA and/or PISA, 
unless: 

a. Ordered by a court of competent jurisdiction; or 
b. Deemed to be in the best public health interest, at the discretion of the 
Douglas County Sewer District’s General Manager and Douglas County Board of 
Commissioners and Chelan/ Douglas Port Authority collectively, and: 
 i.  on-site septic system failures occur; or 
 ii. existing on-site systems would, as determined by the Chelan-
Douglas Health District, otherwise have to be expanded to comply with current 
standards  
 

Prior to connection to sewer system by any one method identified in Section 5, all 
parties of this Agreement shall be notified in writing within 30-days of connection with a 
“Notice of Intent of Sewer Connection”. 
  
Connection must be accomplished with a stub from the main line to a side-sewer 
serving the building using the failed system. The connection and related work, including 
abandonment of the on-site system, must comply with all applicable codes and 
standards. Sanitary sewer service connections must be consistent with RCW 
36.70A.110(4), which allows such connections when necessary to protect basic public 
health and safety and the environment and when such services are financially 
supportable at rural densities and do not permit urban development. 

 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER AGREED that this Agreement shall be 
deemed effective as of the date of filing with the Douglas County Auditor. 
  



3 
 

Approved this   day of    , 2021. 
 
      DOUGLAS COUNTY  
      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
             
      Chair 
 
 
ATTEST:             
      Vice Chair 
 
 
             
Clerk of the Board     Member 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
 
 
      
Prosecuting Attorney  



4 
 

Approved this   day of    , 2021. 
 
      DOUGLAS COUNTY SEWER DIST. #1  
      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
             
      President 
 
 
ATTEST:             
      Vice President 
 
 
             
District Manager                                   Secretary 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
 
 
      
District Attorney   



5 
 

Approved this   day of    , 2021. 
 
      CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT  
                                                                            AUTHORITY             
 
 
             
      Chair 
 
 
ATTEST:             
      Vice Chair 
 
 
             
Clerk of the Board     Member 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
 
 
      
District Attorney 
 

 
 

 



 
Memo 
To: Jim Kuntz, Board of Directors  

From: Trent Moyers 

Date: August 19, 2021 

Re: Jet-A Aircraft Refueler Bids 

 On August 17th, we opened bids related to purchasing a new 5,000 
gallon capacity Jet-A fuel truck.  After reviewing the 3 bids we 
received and discussion with legal counsel and our fuel supplier, it 
was determined that Global Aviation Services bid was non-
responsive.  I recommend that we award the bid to Sky Mark 
Refuelers in the amount of $276,691.00 (not including WSST). 

Budget estimate:  $250,000 

Bid Tabulation 

 Bidder Name 
City, State 

5K Gallon Jet- 
A Aircraft 
Refueler 

Garsite 
Kansas City, KS 

$317,223.00 

Sky Mark Refuelers 
Kansas City, KS 

$276,691.00 

Global Aviation 
Services 
Alvada, OH 

$257,645.00 



 
Memo 
To:  Board of Directors 

From:  Stacie de Mestre 

Date:  August 18, 2021 

Re:  Authorization to Seek Bids – CTC Demolition and 
Restoration and Salvage Equipment Purchase 

The DOH Associates has completed design/bidding documents for 
the demolition and restoration of the former Actapio space at the 
Confluence Technology Center.  The original CTC Core and Shell 
Drawings were used as the basis of design.  Staff is proposing the 
following schedule: 
 
 Advertise for bids:  8/26/21 and 9/2/21 
 Pre-Bid Meeting:  9/16/21 
 Bid Opening:   10/6/21 
 Award Contract:  10/12/21 
 Substantial Completion: 5/26/22 
 Actapio Deadline:  9/26/22 
 
Staff is seeking Board approval to seek bids. 
 
The second part of this project is to find a purchaser for the salvaged 
data center equipment.  This includes but is not limited to the 
generators, chillers, transformers, power distribution units, computer 
room air conditioners, exhaust fans, variable frequency drives, 
batteries, busway systems, and breakers.  The intent is for the 
demolition contractor to remove the salvaged equipment from the 
building and load it on the salvage company’s trucks.  The salvaged 



2 

equipment will be sold as a complete package – meaning one 
company must take it all.  Staff is proposing the following schedule: 
 
 Advertise for bids:  9/2/21 and 9/9/21 
 Pre-Bid Meeting:  9/16/21 
 Bid Opening:   9/29/21 
 Award Contract:  10/12/21 
 Target Completion:  1/31/22  
  
Staff is seeking Board approval to advertise for proposals.   
 
 



 
Memo 
To:  Board of Directors 

From:  Ron Russ 

Date:  August 19, 2021 

Re:  Authorization to Award Contract – Cashmere Mill Site 
Wetland Improvements 

At the July 27th meeting, the Board authorized staff to solicit bids for 
the Cashmere Mill Site Wetland Improvements. 

The project includes removing one existing leveler, installing two new 
levelers, cleaning out the pipes and fully enclosing the leveler intake 
and output points of the two remaining levelers.   

An Invitation to Bid has been sent to three (3) contractors on the 
CDRPA Small Works Roster and bids are due on Thursday, August 
26th.  

This project did not appear as a line item in the approved 2021 
CDRPA Budget, so the Board must authorize contract award.  
Delaying contract award until the September 12th Board meeting 
would push the project start date into late September or early 
October.   

Therefore, we are requesting authorization for the CEO to award a 
contract for the Cashmere Mill Site Wetland Improvements, 
contingent upon the low bid not exceeding the engineer’s estimate of 
$33,000.  The RH2 Task Authorization for project design and 
construction monitoring is $7,311. Staff recommends a total project 
budget of $44,000. 





Page 1 of 7 

  
 

PARTNERS IN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT  
LOCAL GOVERNMENTS/MUNICIPALITIES 

 

PROGRAM PURPOSE 

The Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority (CDRPA) is a regional leader in efforts to achieve 

long-term economic vitality for Chelan and Douglas Counties.  

Effective economic development requires a dynamic synergy of people and organizations 

working together.  The CDRPA acknowledges that local governments play an important role in 

economic development.   The CDRPA has created the Partners in Economic Development 

Program to make strategic economic development investments in rural communities in Chelan 

and Douglas Counties. 

ELIGIBLE ORGANIZATIONS 

To qualify for potential funding through this program, an organization must be a municipal 

corporation located in Chelan or Douglas County and recognized by the Washington Secretary 

of State as an active municipal corporation. 

ELIGIBLE PROGRAMS 

Programs that qualify must: 

 Align with the CDRPA’s vision, mission, economic development goals, and values, as 

described in the CDRPA’s “Annual Economic Development Plan”, and as authorized by 

RCW Chapter 53; and 

 Measurably contribute to the economic development of Chelan and Douglas Counties. 

   

PRIORITIES 

The CDRPA will prioritize proposals that fulfill one or more of the following: 

 Address a proven need or gap; 

 Illustrate a strong proof-of-concept for achieving measurable economic development 

impact; 

 Demonstrate sustainability without continued financial support from the CDRPA; 

 Demonstrate collaboration/partnership with other entities; 

 Local governmental match as a percentage of the overall project cost; 

 Clearly contributes to the economic vitality of the local community; and/or 

 Distributes funding to rural communities in both Chelan and Douglas Counties. 

 



Page 2 of 7 

REQUEST GUIDELINES  

 Proposals are typically funded between $5,000 and $30,000. 

 Partial funding for a larger project may be requested; however the proposal must clearly 

demonstrate how the remainder of the project will be funded. 

 Multi-year projects may be submitted, but a new proposal must be submitted each year 

with subsequent requests contingent upon availability of funds and satisfactory 

progress toward meeting program objectives. 

 

FUNDING & DISBURSEMENT 

 For fiscal year 2020, the CDRPA has set aside $150,000 to be distributed through a 

once a year call for projects program. 

 In addition, the CDRPA has set aside $50,000 as an opportunity fund to assist with 

emerging projects during fiscal year 2020. Any time after March 31, 2020 and 

throughout the remaining year, applications can be submitted for funding until the fund 

is fully allocated. 

 In the event the CDRPA does not allocate all the funding during the call for projects 

phase, said excess funds will be added to the opportunity fund. 

 The CDRPA will reimburse after the project has been completed.  If a quarterly or up-

front investments are required, the local government should indicate the distribution 

plan necessary (and why) on the Application Form. 

 

PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS  

Local government must submit the attached Application Form. 

 

SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS for FY2020 

Proposal deadline:  Friday, November 22 before 5:00 PM PST 

Proposals may be delivered in one of three methods: 

 Electronically (PDF only) 

 Mailed (3 printed copies) 

 Delivered in-person (3 printed copies) 

 

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 
Attn: Ron Cridlebaugh 
One Campbell Parkway, Suite A 
East Wenatchee, WA 98802-9290. 

 

  



Page 3 of 7 

EVALUATION CRITERIA 

 Overall merit and quality of proposal 

 Strength of proven need or gap, and demonstrated ability to address need or gap 

 Clear expectation of how program achieves measurable economic development impact 

 Likelihood of achieving defined metrics/deliverables 

 Demonstrated justification of requested funds 

 

FUNDED PARTNER EXPECTATIONS 

 Local government will need to enter into a Partner Agreement defining expectations 

and Scope of Work 

 Quarterly written reports  

 Final report completed and verbal presentation given at a CDRPA  Board of Directors 

Meeting 

 

PROPOSAL TIMELINE 

 Grant applications will be evaluated and forwarded to the Board of Directors for 

approval. Awards will be made at the end of December or in early January. 

 

QUESTIONS 

Questions related to this program should be directed to Ron Cridlebaugh, Director of 

Economic & Business Development, 509-884-4700 or via email at ron@portofdouglas.org.  

  

mailto:ron@portofdouglas.org


Page 4 of 7 

  
 

Partners in Economic Development Program 
Local Governments/Municipalities  

Application Form 
 

Organization Name:  ___________________________________________________________________ 

Organization Address:  _________________________________________________________________ 

Organization Phone Number:  __________________________________________________________ 

Program Title:  _________________________________________________________________________ 

Program Contact:  ______________________________________________________________________ 

Contact Phone:  ________________________________________________________________________ 

Contact E-mail:  ________________________________________________________________________ 

Contact Title/Position:  _________________________________________________________________ 

 

Investment request is to fund: 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Provide a project description, including: Justification (how this program/project will improve 

economic development in Chelan and Douglas Counties); Methodology, including if/how 

project will be sustainably maintained; Work to date (if any); Partners committed, if any 

(commitment letters required for partners); and Deliverables defined. 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

  

jking
Text Box
Douglas County

jking
Typewritten Text
Douglas County

jking
Typewritten Text
140 19th Street NW, East Wenatchee, WA 98802

jking
Typewritten Text
509-884-7173

jking
Typewritten Text
Capital Program

jking
Typewritten Text
Jessie King

jking
Typewritten Text
509-884-7173 x6561

jking
Typewritten Text
jking@co.douglas.wa.us

jking
Typewritten Text
Capital Programs Manager

jking
Typewritten Text
This request is to fund a portion of the US 2/97 and Cascade Ave Intersection Improvement project.

jking
Typewritten Text
This project proposes to install a roundabout at the intersection of US 2/97 and Cascade Ave.

jking
Typewritten Text
Douglas County was recently awarded grant funding through the Chelan-Douglas Transportation

jking
Typewritten Text
Council 2021 STP/TAP Call-for-Projects. Further information can be found in the attached 

jking
Typewritten Text
grant application narrative.



Page 5 of 7 

Project Start Date (if applicable):  _______________________________________________________ 

Project End Date (if applicable):    _______________________________________________________ 

 

Program timeline/milestones (by quarter): 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Total Project Cost:  _____________________________________________________________________ 

Requested CDRPA Funding:  ___________________________________________________________ 

 

Budget total, broken out by category. (Note: Indirect costs are not allowed) 
 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Is this request for partial funding of a larger project?  If so, identify other funding requested 

for this project (entity, amount requested and anticipated award date), and other funding 

secured for this project (source, amount secured). 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

  

jking
Typewritten Text
Preliminary Engineering would start in January of 2022.

jking
Typewritten Text
Construction would begin in spring of 2024, ending later in 2024.

jking
Typewritten Text
January, 2022 - Begin Design/Preliminary Engineering

jking
Typewritten Text
November, 2022 - Begin Right-of-Way

jking
Typewritten Text
October, 2023 - Advertisement and Award for Construction

jking
Typewritten Text
March, 2024 - Construction

jking
Typewritten Text
$2,195,932.76

jking
Typewritten Text
$50,000.00

jking
Typewritten Text
Please see the attached Project Cost Estimate.

jking
Typewritten Text
This request is for partial funding of a larger project.

jking
Typewritten Text
Northern Fruit Company has committed to $500,000 (see the attached letter).

jking
Typewritten Text
Chelan-Douglas Transportation Council has tentatively awarded Douglas County a grant of $1,195,932.

jking
Typewritten Text
Douglas County is committed to matching funds in the sum of $200,000.

jking
Typewritten Text
WSDOT has verbally committed to $25,000. 



Page 6 of 7 

Is this a multi-year project?  If yes, what are the anticipated funding needs for future years? 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

If this project is not funded at the full requested amount, how will the organization adjust for 

less funding? 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Expenses are reimbursed after the project is completed by invoice/report; explain if 

another option is needed: 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Definition of success of the project, including metrics used to evaluate success (may be 

quantitative and/or qualitative) and method for gathering metrics: 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Has this organization received previous funding from the Port of Chelan County and/or 

Port of Douglas County?  If so, list other funding received and when: 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

jking
Typewritten Text
This will be a multi-year project, but construction will occur within one construction season.

jking
Typewritten Text
No additional funding is anticipated from Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority. 

jking
Typewritten Text
Douglas County is currently seeking additional funding partnerships. If the full project amount can  

jking
Typewritten Text
not be funded, this project will become inactive until additional funding can be obtained. 

jking
Typewritten Text
Reimbursement after project completion is acceptable.

jking
Typewritten Text
Success of the project would mean that the roundabout has been installed and open to traffic.

jking
Typewritten Text
Douglas County will be working closely with WSDOT through the design and construction to 

jking
Typewritten Text
ensure road safety standards are met. A construction inspector will be on-hand to oversee all

jking
Typewritten Text
Douglas County is not aware of any recent project where funding was received from either the 

jking
Typewritten Text
aspects of construction to ensure the project is constructed in accordance with plans and 

jking
Typewritten Text
specifications.

jking
Typewritten Text
Port of Chelan County or the Port of Douglas County.



Page 7 of 7 

Add additional pages, as needed, to complete questions, but please do not exceed a five 

page application (excluding the attachments requested above). 

Questions related to this program/application should be directed to Ron Cridlebaugh, 

Director of Economic & Business Development, 509-884-4700 or via email at 

ron@portofdouglas.org.  

mailto:ron@portofdouglas.org


 

Chelan-Douglas Transportation Council     

2021 Chelan-Douglas STBG/TA Call-for-Projects 

 

US 2/97 and Cascade Ave 

 Intersection Improvement 
an application by  

Douglas County Transportation and Land Services 

for  

Chelan-Douglas Transportation Council 2021 STP/TAP Call-for-Projects  

 

1 PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND OVERVIEW 

The proposed roundabout is located in the Baker Flats Industrial Area at the intersection of US 

2/97, a Principal Arterial, and Cascade Ave (County Road #23350), a Rural Minor Collector (see 

Attachment A, Vicinity Map). The proposed, single-lane roundabout will be designed to AASHTO 
and WSDOT standards and include curb and gutter, a center island, stormwater conveyance and 

infiltration facilities, and an illumination system that connects to the existing luminaires (see 

Attachment B, Plan Layout and Attachment C, Roadway Section).  Acquisition of right-of-way at the 

southwest quadrant of the intersection is likely in order to accommodate an enlarged intersection 
footprint. 

The US 2/97 and Cascade Ave intersection was recently identified to have a level of service   

below adopted minimum standards.  The deficiency was noted in a traffic analysis submitted to   

the County as part of an application for the construction of a 650,000 square-foot facility on 

approximately 55 acres of agriculturally zoned property located northwest of the intersection.     

The recently identified level-of-service deficiency will limit future development of 121 acres of 
adjacent industrial land and the surrounding agricultural lands in the Baker Flats Industrial Area 

until mitigated.  WSDOT has identified the preferred strategy for mitigating the existing and future 
deficiencies to be a roundabout.      

In addition to addressing the deficient level-of-service and associated constraints on further 
development of the Baker Flats Industrial Area, a roundabout at the SR 2/97 and Cascade Ave 

intersection would ensure that increased traffic generated by the future development of the 

Wenatchi Landing Interchange and Subarea would be accommodated.  Traffic volumes are 

anticipated to significantly increase along NW Cascade Ave as the Wenatchi Landing area is 

developed.  Without mitigation of the deficiencies at the intersection, the level-of-service at the 
SR2/97 and Cascade Ave intersection would be further degraded. 

It should also be noted that US 2/97 is a critical farm-to-market route which serves approximately 

10,000 vehicles per day traveling north and south between East Wenatchee, Waterville, and the 

surrounding areas and provides connection to US 2/97 for large industrial, agricultural, and 

essential areas within Douglas County. With the proposed project largely within WSDOT’s right-of-



 

Chelan-Douglas Transportation Council     

2021 Chelan-Douglas STBG/TA Call-for-Projects 

 

way and on the State’s US 2/97 corridor, the County would be working closely with WSDOT on all 
aspects of the project.      

2 PROJECT BUDGET AND DELIVERY SCHEDULE 

Project Budget   

The estimated total cost to complete the project is $2,195,932.76.  In recognition of the importance 

of the project to their development plans, the Northern Fruit Company has committed to a 

$500,000 contribution to the project.  This represents a 22.8% project match.  Douglas County’s 
resultant funding request is for $1,695,932.76.  (See attached estimate) 

Project Schedule 

Douglas County is prepared to start working on the project upon award of grant funds.  The 
following summarizes the anticipated start dates for each phase: 

January, 2022 - Design/Preliminary Engineering 

November, 2022 - Right-of-Way 
October, 2023 - Advertisement and Award 
March, 2024 - Construction 

3 ANTICIPATED ECONOMIC BENEFITS 

Transportation concurrency is one of the goals of the Growth Management Act and refers to the 
timely provision of public facilities and services relative to the demand for them.  The purpose of 

concurrency is to assure that those public facilities and services necessary to support development 

are adequate to serve that development at the time it is available for occupancy and use.  This 

intersection has recently been identified to have a level of service below the established minimum 
standards adopted by both WSDOT and Douglas County. 

In order to facilitate any future development to properties that utilize this intersection to access the 

state highway, an intersection improvement that improves the level of service to the minimum 

standards is required.  This connection to the state highway at Cascade Ave is a critical component 

of the transportation infrastructure that serves as access to 121 acres of industrial zoned property.  

Without funding in place to improve this intersection, no additional building permits can be issued 
for projects that utilize this intersection.  This proposed improvement would facilitate development 
of properties in the area and thereby provide significant economic development to the region.  

4 TRANSPORTATION PLANNING POLICY CONSISTENCY 

While this project may not be specifically called out in the CDTC Regional Transportation Plan, a 
number of projects that are identified in conjunction with the Cascade Interchange and Wenatchi 



 

Chelan-Douglas Transportation Council     

2021 Chelan-Douglas STBG/TA Call-for-Projects 

 

Landing development will impact this particular intersection. It is anticipated that traffic volumes will 

significantly increase along Cascade Ave and through the intersection at US 2/97. The current level 

of service falls below current transportation standards for WSDOT and Douglas County. The 
proposed project would mitigate current deficiencies and provide sufficient level-of-service well into 
the future. 

 

5 COMMUNITY SUPPORT 

The construction of this proposed project will serve to mitigate level-of-service deficiency at the 

US2/97 and Cascade Ave intersection and open up opportunities for continued economic 

development along this regionally important transportation corridor. One of the local fruit 

companies, Northern Fruit Company, has committed to a $500,000 contribution toward the 
construction of this project (see the attached letter of commitment). This represents 22.8% of the 
estimated total project costs. 

In recognition of the need to mitigate levels-of-surface deficiencies and acknowledgment of the 

potential economic benefits for this area, the Washington State Department of Transportation has 
submitted a letter of support of the proposed project (see the attached letter of support).   

 

 



 

May 27, 2021 

Chelan-Douglas Transportation Council 
11 Spokane Street, Suite 302 
Wenatchee, WA  98801 

 

Dear Chelan-Douglas Transportation Council, 

Northern Fruit supports Douglas County’s application for Chelan-Douglas Transportation 
Council 2021 STP/TAP grant funding for a US 2/97 and Cascade Ave Intersection Improvement 
project. 

Economic development should be a key priority for our regional transportation system.  The 
Baker Flats Industrial Area is one of Douglas County’s most successful economic development 
areas.   The Highway 2/97 – Cascade Avenue intersection, however, is operating below both 
WSDOT and Douglas County LOS standards.  This creates a safety issue for all Highway 2/97 
traffic during peak hours. 

The proposed intersection improvements will enhance access and safety for all businesses in 
the Baker Flats Industrial Area.  Improved access can help existing businesses expand and to 
attract new ones.   The project will significantly improve safety when a dryland wildfire event 
forces an emergency evacuation of the industrial area. 

Cascade Avenue is a Douglas County arterial and the only alternative to Highway 2/97 going 
north of Odabashian Bridge.  New homes, the Wenatchi Landing initiative and planned new 
Odabashian Bridge on-off ramps will all increase Cascade Avenue traffic going forward. 

Northern plans to build our next generation packing facility on the former B&B and Lisa Bs 
parcels on the west side of Highway 2/97.  The main access to this facility will be from Cascade 
Avenue.  Uncertainty regarding future traffic control at the Highway 2/97 – Cascade Avenue 
intersection prevented the project from moving forward in 2021.   

To help resolve the existing LOS problem, Northern will guarantee $500,000 in private funding 
to assist with Highway 2/97 – Cascade Avenue intersection improvements.  Our hope is other 
Baker Flats Industrial Area businesses that will benefit from intersection improvements might 
contribute to the $500,000 in private funding.  Otherwise Northern will be responsible for the 
entire amount. 

We strongly support Douglas County in their effort to secure funding to improve the US 2/97 and 
Cascade Avenue intersection.  We appreciate you giving this project serious consideration. 

Sincerely, 

Jorge Sanchez 

Jorge Sanchez 
Operations Manager 

 

220 2nd NE, East Wenatchee, Washington  98801    (509) 884-6651     www.northernfruit.com 



PROJECT COST ESTIMATE
US 2/97 and Cascade Ave Intersection Improvement (Roundabout)
Print Date: 6/2/2021

Estimated Contracted Work Costs
 No. Description Unit Qty.

1 Mobilization L.S. 1
2 Clearing and Grubbing ACRE 0.3
3 Archaeological and Historical Salvage Est. 1
4 Removal of Structures and Obstructions L.S. 1
6 Sawcut Existing Pavement L.F. 200
7 Roadway Excavation Incl. Haul C.Y. 2,000
8 Embankment Compaction C.Y. 500

10 Precast Concrete Drywell EACH 1
11 Catch Basin Type 1L EACH 12
12 Corrugated Polyethylene Storm Sewer Pipe 12 In. Diam. L.F. 1,000
13 Corrugated Polyethylene Storm Sewer Pipe 18 In. Diam. L.F. 300
14 Crushed Surfacing Base Course TON 3,800
15 Crushed Surfacing Top Course TON 2,400
16 HMA Cl. 1/2 In. PG 70-28 TON 3,300
17 ESC Lead DAY 52
18 Silt Fence L.F. 1,200
19 Erosion/Water Pollution Control EST. 1
20 Seeding, Fertilizing, and Mulching ACRE 1
21 Tackifier ACRE 1
22 Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan L.S. 1
23 Roundabout Central Island Cement Concrete Curb L.F. 1,400
24 Roundabout Truck Apron Cement Concrete Curb & Gutter L.F. 500
25 Project Temporary Traffic Control L.S. 1
26 Construction Sign Class A S.F. 200
27 Monument Case and Cover EA. 3
29 Cement Concrete Apron S.Y. 800
30 Cement Conc. Traffic Curb and Gutter L.F. 2,200
33 Pavement Markings L.S. 1
34 Permanent Signing L.S. 1
35 Adjust Manhole EA. 3
38 Illumination System Complete L.S. 6
39 Landscaping L.S. 1
40 SPCC Plan L.S. 1
41 Asbuilts L.S. 1

Total Construction Costs:

Project Cost Summary
Est % 

Contracted 
Const Costs

 Estimated 
Current Phase 

Costs 
Est. Phase 
Start Date

Yrs. Into 

Future1

Est. Costs Adj. 

for Inflation2
% of 
Total

Design/Preliminary Engineering 15.0% 198,089.10$          Jan-22 0.6 201,862.34$        9.2%
Right of Way 17.0% 224,500.98$         Nov-22 1.5 234,479.45$        10.7%
Construction 112.0% 1,479,065.28$      Mar-25 3.8 1,655,022.75$     75.4%

Construction Engineering 12.0% 158,471.28$              Mar-25 3.8 177,323.87$            8.1%
Contracted Construction Work 100% 1,320,594.00$           Mar-25 3.8 1,477,698.88$         67.3%

Subtotal: 1,901,655.36$      2,091,364.53$     
Contingencies: 5.0% 95,082.77$           104,568.23$        

Total Project Costs:

Project Funding Summary
% of Total 5/13/2021

Total Project Costs: 100.0% 3%
Douglas County Funds 22.8%
Chelan-Douglas Transportation Council (STBG) 77.2%

 

Aaron Simmons, PE Date
Douglas County Engineer

$50.00
$80.00

$2,000.00

$3.00

1 Inflation Set Date:  .

$10,000.00

$161,000.00

$25,000.00

$600.00

$30.00

$86,394.00
$4,000.00
$5,000.00
$5,000.00

$5.00
$18.00

$30,000.00

2 Assumed inflat rate:

$75.00
$6.00

$10,000.00
$8,000.00
$1,000.00

$15,000.00$15,000.00

$1,800.00

$1,000.00
$36,000.00
$1,500.00

$21,600.00
$50,000.00

$10,000.00

$1,000.00

$55.00
$115.00

$24,000.00

$500.00 $500.00
$2,000.00

$25.00
$30.00

$19,000.00 $114,000.00

$86,394.00

Phase

Unit Price ($)

$1,000.00
$5,000.00
$5,000.00

$1,000.00

$3,000.00
$1,800.00

Amount ($)

$10,000.00
$500.00

1,996,738.13$                              

$95,000.00
$72,000.00

$359,700.00

$1,000.00

$80.00 $64,000.00

$7,200.00
$10,000.00

$30,000.00

$109.00

Funding Source

2,195,932.76$                        

$25,000.00
$15.00

$1,500.00

1,695,932.76$                              

Est. Costs Adj. for Inflation 2

2,195,932.76$                              

$27,500.00

$3,900.00

$8,000.00

$66,000.00
$10,000.00

500,000.00$                                 

$1,320,594.00

J:\1_Grants\GRANTS - 2021\Chelan-Douglas Transportation Council (STBG)\US 2-97 and Cascade Ave Intersection Improvement\Cost 
Estimate\210512_US2_CASCASE_AVE_RAB_CostE.xls

Page 1 of 1
Print Date/Time: 6/2/20214:16 PM

June 2, 2021

~

June 2, 2021



1

2021 Final 
Budget YTD Budget January February March April May June July August September October November December YTD Actual

Annual Budget 
Variance

YTD Budget 
Variance

OPERATING REVENUES

BUSINESS PARKS

CASHMERE MILL DISTRICT
Building A - Blue Spirits 166,286$        83,143$       13,632$     13,632$       13,632$        13,632$        13,632$        13,632$        81,792$        (84,494)$          (1,351)$        
Building B - Hurst International 115,066          57,533         6,434         6,434           6,434            6,434            6,434            6,434            38,604          (76,462)            (18,929)        
Utility & Operating Reimbursements 50,740            25,370         3,990         5,298           7,204            7,574            5,406            3,480            32,952          (17,788)            7,582           
Misc. Income -                      -                   1,895         -                   2,452            1,089            1,089            817               7,342            7,342                7,342           
TOTAL CASHMERE MILL DISTRICT 332,092          166,046       25,951       25,364         29,722          28,729          26,561          24,363          -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                160,690        (171,402)          (5,356)          

CONFLUENCE TECHNOLOGY CENTER
Office Space Leases 579,422          356,118       105,258     104,448       38,041          38,041          38,709          38,709          363,206        (216,216)          7,088           
CTC South Office Space Leases 1,000              500              -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (1,000)              (500)             
Video Conference/Meeting Room Rentals 67,500            33,750         (193)           5,258           14,281          (7,033)           5,384            1,075            18,772          (48,728)            (14,978)        
Utility & Operating Reimbursements 71,100            55,100         23,803       24,580         4,338            4,338            4,249            4,220            65,528          (5,572)              10,428         
Misc. Income -                      -                   39              39                106               -                    -                    -                    184               184                   184              
TOTAL CONFLUENCE TECHNOLOGY CENTER 719,022          445,468       128,907     134,325       56,766          35,346          48,342          44,004          -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                447,690        (271,332)          2,222           

COLUMBIA STREET PROPERTIES
Misc. Rents -                      -                   3,050         3,050           3,850            11,750          12,650          3,850            38,200          38,200              38,200         
Utility & Operating Reimbursements 5,000              5,000           805            6,483           554               655               810               943               10,250          5,250                5,250           
S.P.O.R.T. Property Sale 2,000,000       -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (2,000,000)       -                   
Columbia Street South Property Sale 1,200,000       -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (1,200,000)       -                   
TOTAL COLUMBIA STREET PROPERTIES 3,205,000       5,000           3,855         9,533           4,404            12,405          13,460          4,793            -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                48,450          (3,156,550)       43,450         

MALAGA INDUSTRIAL SITE
Farm Rental 3,500              3,500           -                 -                   -                    -                    18,139          -                    -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                18,139          14,639              14,639         
TOTAL MALAGA INDUSTRIAL SITE 3,500              3,500           -                 -                   -                    -                    18,139          -                    -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                18,139          14,639              14,639         

OLDS STATION BUSINESS PARK
IB 2 - HOM Solutions -                      -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                       -                   
IB 3 - Confluence Health & POCC Office 65,575            32,788         5,442         5,442           5,442            5,442            5,442            5,442            32,652          (32,923)            (136)             
IB 4 - Pregis Corporation 204,495          102,248       17,041       17,041         17,041          17,041          17,041          17,041          102,246        (102,249)          (2)                 
IB 5 - Chelan County PUD 296,400          148,200       24,700       24,700         24,700          24,700          24,700          24,700          148,200        (148,200)          -                   
IB 6 - ABC Early Learning 13,450            6,725           1,119         1,119           1,119            1,119            1,119            1,119            6,714            (6,736)              (11)               
IB 7 & 8 - Pacific Aerospace & Electronics 705,750          352,875       59,298       59,298         59,298          59,298          59,298          59,298          355,788        (349,962)          2,913           
IB 9 - Sinclair Systems & Frito Lay 281,580          140,790       23,429       23,429         23,429          23,429          23,429          23,429          140,574        (141,006)          (216)             
Utility & Operating Reimbursements 97,750            48,875         5,385         7,751           7,362            9,671            13,238          4,247            47,654          (50,096)            (1,221)          
Misc. Income 2,500              1,250           -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (2,500)              (1,250)          
TOTAL OLDS STATION BUSINESS PARK 1,667,500       833,751       136,414     138,780       138,391        140,700        144,267        135,276        -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                833,828        (833,672)          77                

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority
Budget vs Actual

For the Period Ending June 30, 2021



2

2021 Final 
Budget YTD Budget January February March April May June July August September October November December YTD Actual

Annual Budget 
Variance

YTD Budget 
Variance

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority
Budget vs Actual

For the Period Ending June 30, 2021

PANGBORN AIRPORT
Landing Fees 50,000            25,000         4,290         4,300           4,724            4,516            5,080            5,592            28,502          (21,498)            3,502           
Parking Income 63,000            31,500         10,381       14,887         19,275          20,070          28,199          33,163          125,975        62,975              94,475         
Aircraft Parking 2,500              1,250           35              60                65                 10                 560               522               1,252            (1,248)              2                  
Rental Income - Aviation Land 97,993            48,997         54,602       3,938           3,938            3,938            3,938            3,938            74,292          (23,701)            25,295         
Rental Income - NonAviation Land 67,346            33,673         56,709       35                35                 1,036            750               749               59,314          (8,032)              25,641         
Rental Income - Terminal/Aviation Building 57,377            28,689         8,028         10,179         8,201            9,665            8,844            11,850          56,767          (610)                 28,078         
Rental Income - NonAviation Buildings 76,134            38,067         7,837         7,837           7,837            7,837            7,837            7,870            47,055          (29,079)            8,988           
Rental Income - Hangars 147,441          73,721         32,618       10,730         10,730          10,668          10,603          11,407          86,756          (60,685)            13,035         
Fuel Flowage Fees 18,400            9,200           1,719         1,091           1,957            1,392            1,158            2,172            9,489            (8,911)              289              
FBO Income (After hours, Horizon into Tank) 22,400            11,200         2,375         1,875           1,250            625               2,188            2,688            11,001          (11,399)            (199)             
FBO Fuel Income 1,105,500       552,750       59,816       132,258       84,113          81,214          104,225        139,433        601,059        (504,441)          48,309         
FBO Misc. Income 9,800              4,900           9,361         1,133           580               656               641               836               13,207          3,407                8,307           
Misc. Fees and Permits 27,500            13,750         2,280         3,386           3,195            5,457            1,079            6,624            22,021          (5,479)              8,271           
TOTAL PANGBORN AIRPORT 1,745,391       872,697       250,051     191,709       145,900        147,084        175,102        226,844        -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                1,136,690     (608,701)          263,993       

PANGBORN BUSINESS PARK
Land Leases
   Lot 4 - Swire Coca-Cola 85,778            -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (85,778)            -                   
   Lot 17 - Salcido -                      -                   2,654         2,654           2,654            2,654            2,654            2,654            15,924          15,924              15,924         
Building Leases
   3306 - Multi-Tenant 100,362          50,181         9,138         9,138           9,138            9,138            9,138            9,138            54,828          (45,534)            4,647           
   3310 - Accor Building 349,917          174,959       28,835       28,835         28,835          29,268          29,268          29,268          174,309        (175,608)          (650)             
CWICC 195,434          97,717         16,205       16,205         16,205          16,205          16,205          16,205          97,230          (98,204)            (487)             
Utility & Operating Reimbursements 54,000            27,000         1,133         758              795               1,151            835               870               5,542            (48,458)            (21,458)        
Contribution in Aid of Construction 128,854          -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (128,854)          -                   
Misc. Income 1,000              500              142            -                   48                 -                    -                    -                    190               (810)                 (310)             
TOTAL PANGBORN BUSINESS PARK 915,345          350,357       58,107       57,590         57,675          58,416          58,100          58,135          -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                348,023        (567,322)          (2,334)          

REGIONAL PORT OFFICE/AVIATION CENTER
Rental Income - Offices 13,500            6,750           3,588         1,713           1,263            1,263            1,263            1,263            10,353          (3,147)              3,603           
Rental Income - Aviation/Hangar Uses 140,670          70,335         21,489       16,041         13,085          13,785          13,106          12,835          90,341          (50,329)            20,006         
Misc. Income -                      -                   -                 -                   165               165               -                    -                    330               330                   330              
TOTAL RPA OFFICE/AVIATION CENTER 154,170          77,085         25,077       17,754         14,513          15,213          14,369          14,098          -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                101,024        (53,146)            23,939         

LAKE CHELAN AIRPORT
Rental Income - Kelly Property 5,700              2,850           525            525              525               527               450               450               3,002            (2,698)              152              
TOTAL LAKE CHELAN AIRPORT 5,700              2,850           525            525              525               527               450               450               -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                3,002            (2,698)              152              

MANSFIELD AIRPORT
Lease Income -                      -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                       -                   
TOTAL MANSFIELD AIRPORT -                      -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                -                    -                       -                   

WATERVILLE AIRPORT
Lease Income 3,184              1,592           900            -                   450               964               -                    358               2,672            (512)                 1,080           
TOTAL WATERVILLE AIRPORT 3,184              1,592           900            -                   450               964               -                    358               -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                2,672            (512)                 1,080           

ORONDO RIVER PARK
Chelan County PUD 30,000            15,000         -                 235              7,247            3,669            3,851            4,370            19,372          (10,628)            4,372           
Misc. Income -                      -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                       -                   
TOTAL ORONDO RIVER PARK 30,000            15,000         -                 235              7,247            3,669            3,851            4,370            -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                19,372          (10,628)            4,372           



3

2021 Final 
Budget YTD Budget January February March April May June July August September October November December YTD Actual

Annual Budget 
Variance

YTD Budget 
Variance

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority
Budget vs Actual

For the Period Ending June 30, 2021

PYBUS INCUBATOR
Office Space Lease -                      -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    3,640            3,640            3,640                3,640           
Misc. Income -                      -                   75              -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    75                 75                     75                
TOTAL PYBUS INCUBATOR -                      -                   75              -                   -                    -                    -                    3,640            -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                3,715            3,715                3,715           

TOTAL BUSINESS PARK REVENUE 8,780,904       2,773,346    629,862     575,815       455,593        443,053        502,641        516,331        -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                3,105,156     (5,675,748)       335,310       

TAX RECEIPTS
Current Levy 4,267,763       
1.0% of Prior Year Tax -                      
New Construction 91,808            
Tax Refunded (receipts) 9,721              
TOTAL TAX RECEIPTS 4,369,292       2,184,646    10,877       34,481         392,169        1,694,802     299,719        35,683          2,467,731     (1,901,561)       283,085       

NON-OPERATING  REVENUES
ADO Contracts - Dept. of Commerce 109,286          54,643         -                 -                   27,322          -                    -                    27,322          54,644          (54,642)            1                  
Department of Commerce - ADO Relief -                      -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    200,000        -                    200,000        200,000            200,000       
FAA AIP Grant Proceeds (EA & Term Bldg Cap Impr) 45,000            -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (45,000)            -                   
FAA AIP Grant Proceeds (Land Acquisition) 1,500,000       -                   -                    -                    -                    (1,500,000)       -                   
FAA AIP Grant Proceeds (Apron Rehab) 1,142,380       -                   -                    -                    -                    (1,142,380)       -                   
FAA Discretionary (Apron Rehab) 3,700,000       -                   -                    -                    -                    (3,700,000)       -                   
FAA AIP CARES Act Grant ($18,120,860) 2,122,020       636,700       279,711     202,754       -                    -                    -                    154,243        636,708        (1,485,312)       8                  
FAA AIP ACRGP Act Grant ($1,021,952) -                      -                   -                 -                   242,379        302,452        196,350        238,088        979,269        979,269            979,269       
PFC Capital Funds (Receipts + Reserves) 203,120          101,560       12,334       14,428         17,755          16,769          20,606          20,062          101,954        (101,166)          394              
TSA Operating Grant 14,600            7,300           1,020         840              1,020            1,080            1,200            1,080            6,240            (8,360)              (1,060)          
Actapio Restoration Reimbursement 2,000,000       -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (2,000,000)       -                   
Douglas County Payment - PWTF 80,000            -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (80,000)            -                   
WSDOT Aviation - Pangborn 2,500              -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (2,500)              -                   
WSDOT Aviation - Waterville 156,749          156,749       -                 3,477           -                    -                    -                    182,286        185,763        29,014              29,014         
CERB Grant - Giga Watt Adaptive ReUse Study 50,000            34,305         -                 -                   7,155            18,387          -                    8,765            34,307          (15,693)            2                  
Chelan County .09 Grant - Partnership Projects 60,000            -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (60,000)            -                   
Other Tax Income (LHT & Timber Dist.) 12,950            7,425           -                 2,903           -                    2,482            -                    2,042            7,427            (5,523)              2                  
EPA Brownsfield Grant ($600,000) 300,000          45,550         -                 -                   4,229            20,115          11,428          9,786            45,558          (254,442)          8                  
Interest Income 86,750            43,375         8,063         9,063           13,737          4,000            -                    18,803          53,666          (33,084)            10,291         
Other Income 40,000            20,000         163            116              -                    35                 -                    66                 380               (39,620)            (19,620)        
Sale of Fixed Assets -                      -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    13,279          13,279          13,279              13,279         
TOTAL NON-OPERATING  REVENUES 11,625,355     1,107,607    301,291     233,581       313,597        365,320        429,584        675,822        -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                2,319,195     (9,306,160)       1,211,588    

TOTAL REVENUES 24,775,551$   6,065,599$  942,030$   843,877$     1,161,359$   2,503,175$   1,231,944$   1,227,836$   -$                -$               -$                 -$                -$              -$              7,892,082$   (16,883,469)$   1,829,983$  



4

2021 Final 
Budget YTD Budget January February March April May June July August September October November December YTD Actual

Annual Budget 
Variance

YTD Budget 
Variance

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority
Budget vs Actual

For the Period Ending June 30, 2021

BUSINESS PARK EXPENSES

CASHMERE MILL DISTRICT
Debt Service - Buildings A & B 219,134          109,567       -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    109,567        109,567        (109,567)          -                   
CERB Loan 75,781            75,781         75,781       -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    75,781          -                       -                   
Property Insurance 17,930            -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (17,930)            -                   
Building Maintenance 2,500              1,250           117            -                   -                    -                    -                    220               337               (2,163)              (913)             
Property Maintenance 17,500            8,750           5,071         2,296           2,419            1,083            558               599               12,026          (5,474)              3,276           
Utilities 32,500            16,250         3,472         3,372           2,922            2,557            2,464            1,985            16,772          (15,728)            522              
Misc. Expenses 7,500              3,750           -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (7,500)              (3,750)          
TOTAL CASHMERE MILL DISTRICT 372,845          215,348       84,441       5,668           5,341            3,640            3,022            112,371        -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                214,483        (158,362)          (865)             

CONFLUENCE TECHNOLOGY CENTER
Salaries 141,045          70,523         13,414       13,662         13,267          13,870          12,874          12,898          79,985          (61,060)            9,462           
Employee Benefits 35,510            17,755         2,902         2,902           2,902            2,909            2,902            2,902            17,419          (18,091)            (336)             
Payroll Taxes 12,520            6,260           1,205         1,226           1,195            1,252            1,141            1,157            7,176            (5,344)              916              
Contract Labor 10,000            5,000           -                 -                   -                    -                    296               -                    296               (9,704)              (4,704)          
Building Operational Expenses 405,455          202,728       28,343       28,340         29,545          51,329          38,963          24,081          200,601        (204,854)          (2,127)          
CTC South Building Operational Expenses 23,510            11,755         1,758         2,264           2,652            1,476            540               643               9,333            (14,177)            (2,422)          
Video Conference Center/Meeting Room Expenses 131,089          65,545         8,122         7,465           21,097          7,576            9,750            9,911            63,921          (67,168)            (1,624)          
Debt Service 48,529            48,529         48,529       -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    48,529          -                       -                   
Misc. Expenses 5,000              2,500           -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    (5,000)              (2,500)          
TOTAL CONFLUENCE TECHNOLOGY CENTER 812,658          430,595       104,273     55,859         70,658          78,412          66,466          51,592          -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                427,260        (385,398)          (3,335)          

MALAGA INDUSTRIAL SITE
Property Maintenance 15,000            7,500           -                 -                   -                    -                    8                   8                   (14,992)            (7,492)          
Property Insurance 250                 120              119            -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    119               (131)                 (1)                 
Utilities 5,000              2,500           41              25                15                 -                    -                    81                 (4,919)              (2,419)          
Misc. Expenses 10,000            5,000           -                 19                -                    -                    -                    19                 (9,981)              (4,981)          
TOTAL MALAGA INDUSTRIAL SITE 30,250            15,120         160            44                15                 -                    8                   -                    -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                227               (30,023)            (14,893)        

OLDS STATION BUSINESS PARK
Salaries (Maintenance) 60,455            30,228         5,051         5,129           5,384            5,161            4,916            5,017            30,658          (29,797)            430              
Employee Benefits 22,235            11,118         2,320         1,785           1,817            1,788            1,756            1,778            11,244          (10,991)            126              
Payroll Taxes 7,290              3,645           589            603              631               560               495               471               3,349            (3,941)              (296)             
Building Maintenance & Repairs 22,500            11,250         153            -                   151               1,415            -                    256               1,975            (20,525)            (9,275)          
Property & Grounds 18,975            9,488           4,029         6,595           1,635            1,216            1,633            850               15,958          (3,017)              6,470           
Small Equipment 2,500              1,250           112            171              152               258               463               -                    1,156            (1,344)              (94)               
Utilities 52,500            26,250         5,204         5,017           4,183            4,706            3,528            3,983            26,621          (25,879)            371              
Fire Protection in lieu of taxes 9,750              9,750           -                 -                   -                    9,785            -                    -                    9,785            35                     35                
Property Insurance 58,520            -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (58,520)            -                   
Misc. Expenses 5,000              2,500           -                 -                   -                    27                 -                    -                    27                 (4,973)              (2,473)          
TOTAL OLDS STATION BUSINESS PARK 259,725          105,479       17,458       19,300         13,953          24,916          12,791          12,355          -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                100,773        (158,952)          (4,706)          



5

2021 Final 
Budget YTD Budget January February March April May June July August September October November December YTD Actual

Annual Budget 
Variance

YTD Budget 
Variance

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority
Budget vs Actual

For the Period Ending June 30, 2021

COLUMBIA STREET PROPERTIES
Building Operational Expenses 25,750            12,875         4,722         5,428           2,263            2,262            2,335            3,229            20,239          (5,511)              7,364           
Property Insurance 33,420            -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (33,420)            -                   
Misc. Expenses 37,500            18,750         1,372         -                   -                    9,333            -                    -                    10,705          (26,795)            (8,045)          
TOTAL COLUMBIA STREET PROPERTIES 96,670            31,625         6,094         5,428           2,263            11,595          2,335            3,229            -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                30,944          (65,726)            (681)             

PESHASTIN PROPERTY
Property Maintenance 3,250              1,625           90              90                90                 1,390            90                 90                 1,840            (1,410)              215              
TOTAL PESHASTIN PROPERTY 3,250              1,625           90              90                90                 1,390            90                 90                 -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                1,840            (1,410)              215              

PANGBORN AIRPORT 
Salaries 632,505          316,253       54,853       53,112         56,291          53,522          50,236          54,217          322,231        (310,274)          5,978           
Salaries - Overtime 45,610            22,805         7,278         7,010           5,207            1,550            3,527            2,480            27,052          (18,558)            4,247           
Employee Benefits 215,365          107,683       19,946       17,771         17,891          15,999          16,002          17,532          105,141        (110,224)          (2,542)          
Payroll Taxes 84,400            42,200         7,046         6,905           12,724          6,249            5,999            6,509            45,432          (38,968)            3,232           
Engineering/Professional Fees 105,000          52,500         8,670         5,767           4,417            7,312            7,002            11,588          44,756          (60,244)            (7,744)          
Non-Aviation Maintenance 10,000            5,000           -                 -                   1,316            1,669            76                 301               3,362            (6,638)              (1,638)          
Aviation Maintenance 25,000            12,500         946            1,997           5,382            323               1,429            173               10,250          (14,750)            (2,250)          
Terminal Maintenance 33,000            16,500         492            1,263           13,151          1,299            733               3,515            20,453          (12,547)            3,953           
Airfield Maintenance 65,000            32,500         612            49                8,437            13,339          3,168            977               26,582          (38,418)            (5,918)          
Vehicle & Equipment Maintenance 30,000            15,000         3,182         2,486           5                   1,643            2,431            1,734            11,481          (18,519)            (3,519)          
Small Tools & Equipment 5,000              2,500           -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (5,000)              (2,500)          
Utilities 153,450          76,725         5,994         6,223           5,647            82,906          4,556            3,455            108,781        (44,669)            32,056         
Property Insurance 112,500          42,065         33,153       -                   -                    -                    -                    8,913            42,066          (70,434)            1                  
FBO Expenses 22,500            11,250         10,042       2,383           1,692            1,898            1,652            2,583            20,250          (2,250)              9,000           
Fuel (Resale) 830,000          415,000       51,486       72,247         54,641          55,373          69,867          98,269          401,883        (428,117)          (13,117)        
Fuel  (M&O) 28,000            14,000         3,381         3,733           1,472            2,108            2,298            38                 13,030          (14,970)            (970)             
Regulatory Compliance 58,000            29,000         568            1,557           2,391            2,807            307               11,894          19,524          (38,476)            (9,476)          
Winter Operations 36,000            18,000         11,602       -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    11,602          (24,398)            (6,398)          
Memberships & Subs 7,500              3,750           810            79                660               -                    320               -                    1,869            (5,631)              (1,881)          
Marketing 15,000            7,500           -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (15,000)            (7,500)          
Conferences, Training & Meetings 17,500            8,750           -                 -                   -                    -                    350               1,478            1,828            (15,672)            (6,922)          
Information Technology 42,000            21,000         22,991       1,934           632               1,520            1,595            1,499            30,171          (11,829)            9,171           
Credit Card Fees 21,000            10,500         977            596              1,537            1,683            2,250            3,179            10,222          (10,778)            (278)             
COVID-19 Compliance 35,000            17,500         -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (35,000)            (17,500)        
Parking Lot Expenses -                      -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    328               2,528            2,856            2,856                2,856           
Misc. Expenses 15,000            7,500           218            302              374               1,439            224               722               3,279            (11,721)            (4,221)          
TOTAL PANGBORN AIRPORT 2,644,330       1,307,981    244,247     185,414       193,867        252,639        174,350        233,584        -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                1,284,101     (1,360,229)       (23,880)        



6

2021 Final 
Budget YTD Budget January February March April May June July August September October November December YTD Actual

Annual Budget 
Variance

YTD Budget 
Variance

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority
Budget vs Actual

For the Period Ending June 30, 2021

PANGBORN BUSINESS PARK
Maintenance 98,500            49,250         11,282       13,237         6,901            11,619          5,722            5,546            54,307          (44,193)            5,057           
Utilities 59,895            29,948         1,831         2,111           1,868            1,543            1,658            1,342            10,353          (49,542)            (19,595)        
Storm Water 3,750              3,750           -                 -                   -                    3,668            -                    -                    3,668            (82)                   (82)               
Property Insurance 35,550            -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (35,550)            -                   
CIAC Payments to PUD 92,038            92,038         437,550     -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    437,550        345,512            345,512       
Debt Service (Princ, Int, Fees) 90,533            90,533         -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    90,533          90,533          -                       -                   
Misc. Expenses 2,000              1,000           -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (2,000)              (1,000)          
TOTAL PANGBORN BUSINESS PARK 382,266          266,519       450,663     15,348         8,769            16,830          7,380            97,421          -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                596,411        214,145            329,892       

REGIONAL PORT OFFICE/AVIATION CENTER
Building Maintenance & Repairs 25,000            12,500         5,032         1,094           365               803               3,378            4,869            15,541          (9,459)              3,041           
Utilities 45,000            22,500         6,572         7,607           4,439            4,043            1,873            1,430            25,964          (19,036)            3,464           
Insurance 30,130            -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (30,130)            -                   
Landscape Maintenance 17,500            8,750           96              -                   2,653            2,004            2,004            -                    6,757            (10,743)            (1,993)          
Misc. Expenses 7,500              3,750           256            -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    256               (7,244)              (3,494)          
Total RPA OFFICE/AVIATION CENTER 125,130          47,500         11,956       8,701           7,457            6,850            7,255            6,299            -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                48,518          (76,612)            1,018           

LAKE CHELAN AIRPORT
Maintenance & Operations Subsidy (City of Chelan) 45,286            22,643         11,322       -                   -                    11,322          -                    -                    22,644          (22,642)            1                  
Misc. Expenses (City of Chelan) 5,000              2,500           -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (5,000)              (2,500)          
Maintenance (Kelly Property) 8,500              4,250           -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    3,328            3,328            (5,172)              (922)             
Insurance 705                 -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (705)                 -                   
Utilities 305                 153              24              23                23                 23                 22                 22                 137               (168)                 (16)               
Misc. Expenses (Kelly Property) 1,500              750              -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (1,500)              (750)             
TOTAL LAKE CHELAN AIRPORT 61,296            30,296         11,346       23                23                 11,345          22                 3,350            -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                26,109          (35,187)            (4,187)          

MANSFIELD AIRPORT
Maintenance 3,000              1,500           -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (3,000)              (1,500)          
Supplies 2,750              1,375           -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (2,750)              (1,375)          
Repairs 500                 250              -                 -                   422               -                    -                    -                    422               (78)                   172              
Utilities 600                 300              55              43                45                 45                 44                 42                 274               (326)                 (26)               
Property Insurance 4,660              -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (4,660)              -                   
Misc. Expenses 2,500              1,250           -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (2,500)              (1,250)          
TOTAL MANSFIELD AIRPORT 14,010            4,675           55              43                467               45                 44                 42                 -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                696               (13,314)            (3,979)          

WATERVILLE AIRPORT
Outside Maintenance 7,000              3,500           -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (7,000)              (3,500)          
Supplies 2,750              1,375           -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (2,750)              (1,375)          
Repairs 500                 250              -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (500)                 (250)             
Utilities 600                 300              40              30                34                 33                 28                 25                 190               (410)                 (110)             
Property Insurance 4,660              -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (4,660)              -                   
Misc. Expenses 3,000              1,500           -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (3,000)              (1,500)          
TOTAL WATERVILLE AIRPORT 18,510            6,925           40              30                34                 33                 28                 25                 -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                190               (18,320)            (6,735)          



7

2021 Final 
Budget YTD Budget January February March April May June July August September October November December YTD Actual

Annual Budget 
Variance

YTD Budget 
Variance

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority
Budget vs Actual

For the Period Ending June 30, 2021

ORONDO RIVER PARK
Outside Services
   Engineering 4,000              2,000           -                 -                   -                    496               493               497               1,486            (2,514)              (514)             
   Labor/Maintenance 28,500            14,250         -                 405              2,682            5,924            6,904            7,336            23,251          (5,249)              9,001           
   Other 5,000              2,500           -                 -                   -                    654               79                 83                 816               (4,184)              (1,684)          
Supplies 2,500              1,250           -                 -                   -                    12                 -                    411               423               (2,077)              (827)             
Repairs 2,500              1,250           -                 -                   -                    30                 -                    -                    30                 (2,470)              (1,220)          
Utilities 2,250              1,125           66              116              115               221               226               291               1,035            (1,215)              (90)               
Property Insurance 1,530              -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (1,530)              -                   
Misc. Expenses 5,000              2,500           -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (5,000)              (2,500)          
TOTAL ORONDO RIVER PARK 51,280            24,875         66              521              2,797            7,337            7,702            8,618            -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                27,041          (24,239)            2,166           

PYBUS INCUBATOR
Misc. Expenses 6,000              3,000           -                 51                96                 73                 377               468               1,065            (4,935)              (1,935)          
TOTAL PYBUS INCUBATOR 6,000              3,000           -                 51                96                 73                 377               468               -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                1,065            (4,935)              (1,935)          

TOTAL BUSINESS PARK EXPENSES 4,878,220       2,491,563    930,889     296,520       305,830        415,105        281,870        529,444        -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                2,759,658     (2,118,562)       268,095       

ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL EXPENSES
Salaries 1,056,225       528,113       83,042       86,412         87,987          102,611        84,031          87,164          531,247        (524,978)          3,134           
Commissioners' Compensation, Benefits & Taxes 200,085          100,043       16,300       18,092         14,146          15,117          16,229          14,427          94,311          (105,774)          (5,732)          
Employee Benefits 300,275          150,138       27,554       24,891         24,977          24,919          28,010          24,830          155,181        (145,094)          5,043           
Payroll Taxes 90,035            45,018         7,001         7,247           15,030          8,609            7,105            7,513            52,505          (37,530)            7,487           
Internship Opportunities 10,000            -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (10,000)            -                   
Professional Services
    Legal 220,000          110,000       20,875       17,531         16,739          14,997          17,246          13,250          100,638        (119,362)          (9,362)          
    Engineering 117,500          58,750         775            871              200               -                    9,558            2,151            13,555          (103,945)          (45,195)        
    Government Relations - Federal 40,000            -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (40,000)            -                   
    WA State Audit Costs 70,500            1,005           1,006         -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    1,006            (69,494)            1                  
    Other Professional Services 42,500            21,250         2,017         -                   2,475            6,091            475               7,498            18,556          (23,944)            (2,694)          
County Election Costs 70,000            -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (70,000)            -                   
Conferences, Training, and Meetings 10,000            5,000           -                 140              390               -                    -                    815               1,345            (8,655)              (3,655)          
Commission Conferences & Travel 15,000            7,500           288            276              297               270               826               3,474            5,431            (9,569)              (2,069)          
Memberships and Subscriptions 50,000            25,000         23,294       1,392           431               15,934          37                 766               41,854          (8,146)              16,854         
Travel 7,500              3,750           122            169              236               127               384               337               1,375            (6,125)              (2,375)          
Office Expense
    Supplies 32,500            16,250         4,337         2,212           1,188            1,071            1,066            871               10,745          (21,755)            (5,505)          
    Telephone 13,500            6,750           970            984              999               2,416            1,065            1,069            7,503            (5,997)              753              
    Computers/Hardware 8,500              4,250           285            2,171           2,886            -                    -                    475               5,817            (2,683)              1,567           
    Software/Backup/Internet 27,500            13,750         13,577       178              118               233               144               140               14,390          (13,110)            640              
    Managed Services/Maintenance 35,000            17,500         2,314         171              2,602            2,323            2,319            2,319            12,048          (22,952)            (5,452)          
Insurance (Public Officials, General Liability, etc) 111,905          685              -                 -                   -                    -                    683               -                    683               (111,222)          (2)                 
Auto Expense 7,500              3,750           5,433         437              1,262            454               498               581               8,665            1,165                4,915           
Misc. Expenses 15,000            7,500           55              310              834               992               1,077            1,506            4,774            (10,226)            (2,726)          
TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL EXPENSES 2,551,025       1,126,002    209,245     163,484       172,797        196,164        170,753        169,186        -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                1,081,629     (1,469,396)       (44,373)        



8

2021 Final 
Budget YTD Budget January February March April May June July August September October November December YTD Actual

Annual Budget 
Variance

YTD Budget 
Variance

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority
Budget vs Actual

For the Period Ending June 30, 2021

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT & MARKETING EXPENSES
    Marketing & Communications 75,000            37,500         20,880       330              2,841            803               1,331            651               26,836          (48,164)            (10,664)        
    Business Recruitment & Trade Shows 15,000            7,500           330            363              363               355               480               13,456          15,347          347                   7,847           
    Air Service Investment Program 15,000            7,500           -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (15,000)            (7,500)          
    Real Estate Marketing 35,000            17,500         -                 -                   -                    5,024            541               2,484            8,049            (26,951)            (9,451)          
    Chelan-Douglas Trends 7,000              -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (7,000)              -                   
    Small Business Development Center (WSU) 80,000            40,000         -                 -                   20,000          -                    -                    -                    20,000          (60,000)            (20,000)        
    Promotional Hosting 5,000              2,500           -                 85                -                    196               -                    -                    281               (4,719)              (2,219)          
TOTAL BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT & MARKETING EXPENSES 232,000          112,500       21,210       778              23,204          6,378            2,352            16,591          -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                70,513          (161,487)          (41,987)        

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CONTRACTS (NON-PROFITS)
    Community Nonprofit ED Projects 255,000          71,995         5,473         -                   35,162          3,000            -                    28,358          71,993          (183,007)          (2)                 
TOTAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CONTRACTS 255,000          71,995         5,473         -                   35,162          3,000            -                    28,358          -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                71,993          (183,007)          (2)                 

COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIP PROJECTS (MUNICIPALITIES)
    City of Bridgeport 20,000            245              245            -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    245               (19,755)            -                   
    City of Cashmere 35,000            -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (35,000)            -                   
    City of Chelan 30,000            -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (30,000)            -                   
    Eastmont Metropolitan Parks District 20,000            -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (20,000)            -                   
    PUD 5th Street Redevelopment Study 15,684            -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (15,684)            -                   
    Chelan County - Countywide Trails Plan 20,000            -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (20,000)            -                   
    City of Wenatchee - Confl. Parkway Environmental 175,000          175,000       -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    175,000        175,000        -                       -                   
    Opportunity Placeholder 50,000            -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (50,000)            -                   
TOTAL COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIP PROJECTS 365,684          175,245       245            -                   -                    -                    -                    175,000        -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                175,245        (190,439)          -                   

Other Expenditures
EPA Brownsfield Grant - Consultant Services 300,000          53,500         4,229         20,115         11,428          9,786            7,938            -                    53,496          (246,504)          (4)                 

TOTAL EXPENSES 8,581,929       4,030,805    1,171,291  480,897       548,421        630,433        462,913        918,579        -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                4,212,534     (4,369,395)       181,729       

LESS OPERATING REVENUES 24,775,551     6,065,599    942,030     843,877       1,161,359     2,503,175     1,231,944     1,227,836     -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                7,892,082     (16,883,469)     1,829,983    

NET RESULTS BEFORE CAPITAL PROJECTS 16,193,622     2,034,794    (229,261)    362,980       612,938        1,872,742     769,031        309,257        -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                3,679,548     (12,514,074)     1,648,254    



9

2021 Final 
Budget YTD Budget January February March April May June July August September October November December YTD Actual

Annual Budget 
Variance

YTD Budget 
Variance

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority
Budget vs Actual

For the Period Ending June 30, 2021

CAPITAL PROJECTS

CASHMERE MILL DISTRICT
Tenant Improvements 700,000          26,500         25,156       -                   1,293            -                    -                    -                    26,449          (673,551)          (51)               
Utility Room - Building B 100,000          -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (100,000)          -                   
Capital Projects - Other  10,000            4,795           -                 -                   2,061            -                    -                    2,732            4,793            (5,207)              (2)                 
TOTAL CASHMERE MILL DISTRICT 810,000          31,295         25,156       -                   3,354            -                    -                    2,732            -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                31,242          (778,758)          (53)               

Confluence Technology Center
Server 13,985            10,200         -                 -                   10,198          -                    -                    -                    10,198          (3,787)              (2)                 
Window Sealant Project 50,000            2,710           413            1,952           345               -                    -                    -                    2,710            (47,290)            -                   
Building Entrance Enhancement 25,000            2,160           -                 -                   -                    2,000            -                    161               2,161            (22,839)            1                  
Actapio Restoration 2,000,000       50,750         10,350       -                   7,778            6,292            239               26,093          50,752          (1,949,248)       2                  
Capital Projects - Other 5,000              -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (5,000)              -                   
TOTAL CONFLUENCE TECHNOLOGY CENTER 2,093,985       65,820         10,763       1,952           18,321          8,292            239               26,254          -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                65,821          (2,028,164)       1                  

OLDS STATION BUSINESS PARK
IB #2 Repave Parking Lot 150,000          6,350           -                 -                   963               -                    5,376            -                    6,339            (143,661)          (11)               
Capital Projects - Other 10,000            4,985           1,066         250              3,671            -                    -                    -                    4,987            (5,013)              2                  
TOTAL OLDS STATION BUSINESS PARK 160,000          11,335         1,066         250              4,634            -                    5,376            -                    -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                11,326          (148,674)          (9)                 

PANGBORN AIRPORT - CAPITAL
FAA Sponsored Projects
   Environmental Assessment 50,000            -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (50,000)            -                   
   Apron Rehab & Expansion 5,720,000       530,800       35,059       67,112         103,244        146,953        145,345        33,090          530,803        (5,189,197)       3                  
CDRPA Funded Projects
   Land Use Plan Update 75,000            58,510         3,089         11,935         6,036            6,630            13,532          17,286          58,508          (16,492)            (2)                 
   Terminal Building Parking Management 60,000            54,090         -                 -                   5,316            16,288          24,435          8,053            54,092          (5,908)              2                  
   Airport-Wide Wireless Network 18,500            16,750         -                 16,770         -                    -                    -                    -                    16,770          (1,730)              20                
   Terminal Radio Repeater 50,000            -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (50,000)            -                   
   Maintenance/Operations Equipment 175,000          -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (175,000)          -                   
   Air Service Reliability Projects
      Terrain Study 5,000              -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (5,000)              -                   
      Construction of MALSR System 2,438,000       11,520         185            -                   3,313            5,211            769               2,041            11,519          (2,426,481)       (1)                 
      Runway Protection Zone - Land Acquisition 2,350,000       468,080       3,723         5,799           6,059            7,795            -                    444,704        468,080        (1,881,920)       -                   
   Jet-A Fuel Truck (5,000 gallon) 100,000          -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (100,000)          -                   
   Aircraft  De-Icing Cart 8,000              -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (8,000)              -                   
   GA Building Study 25,000            -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (25,000)            -                   
   Capital Projects Other 10,000            -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (10,000)            -                   
TOTAL PANGBORN AIRPORT - CAPITAL 11,084,500     1,139,750    42,056       101,616       123,968        182,877        184,081        505,174        -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                1,139,772     (9,944,728)       22                

PANGBORN BUSINESS PARK - CAPITAL
Tenant Improvements - 3306 Building 25,000            -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (25,000)            -                   
HVAC Units - CWICC Building 150,000          150,000       -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    161,592        161,592        11,592              11,592         
Giga Watt Adaptive Re-Use Study 66,667            45,740         -                 9,540           24,516          -                    -                    11,687          45,743          (20,924)            3                  
TOTAL PANGBORN BUSINESS PARK - CAPITAL 241,667          195,740       -                 9,540           24,516          -                    -                    173,279        -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                207,335        (34,332)            11,595         



10

2021 Final 
Budget YTD Budget January February March April May June July August September October November December YTD Actual

Annual Budget 
Variance

YTD Budget 
Variance

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority
Budget vs Actual

For the Period Ending June 30, 2021

REGIONAL PORT OFFICE/AVIATION CENTER
Trench Drain Sewer Connection 70,000            515              514            -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    514               (69,486)            (1)                 
Modular Building Roof 10,000            -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (10,000)            -                   
Carpet Replacement 45,000            -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (45,000)            -                   
Large Meeting Room 280,000          100              -                 100              -                    -                    -                    -                    100               (279,900)          -                   
HVAC Replacement Phase I/Phase II 600,000          42,190         1,187         372              40,521          -                    111               -                    42,191          (557,809)          1                  
Total RPA OFFICE/AVIATION CENTER 1,005,000       42,805         1,701         472              40,521          -                    111               -                    -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                42,805          (962,195)          -                   

LAKE CHELAN AIRPORT - CAPITAL
Capital Projects - Other -                      -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                       -                   
TOTAL LAKE CHELAN AIRPORT - CAPITAL -                  -                -              -                -                 -                 -                 -                 -               -               -                -               -              -             -                -                    -                

MANSFIELD AIRPORT - CAPITAL
Crack Sealing 25,000            -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (25,000)            -                   
TOTAL MANSFIELD AIRPORT - CAPITAL 25,000            -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                -                    (25,000)            -                   

WATERVILLE AIRPORT - CAPITAL
Pavement 174,170          174,170       309            -                   18                 -                    -                    242,940        243,267        69,097              69,097         
TOTAL WATERVILLE AIRPORT - CAPITAL 174,170          174,170       309            -                   18                 -                    -                    242,940        -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                243,267        69,097              69,097         

ORONDO RIVER PARK - CAPITAL
Fuel Dock & Trailer Removal 15,000            11,695         -                 -                   11,696          -                    -                    -                    11,696          (3,304)              1                  
TOTAL ORONDO RIVER PARK - CAPITAL 15,000            11,695         -                 -                   11,696          -                    -                    -                    -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                11,696          (3,304)              1                  

OTHER CAPITAL
Maintenance Pickup 50,000            -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (50,000)            -                   
Columbia Street Properties 100,000          2,425           1,946         477              -                    -                    -                    -                    2,423            (97,577)            (2)                 
Douglas County Land Acquisition 1,650,000       1,610,000    3,967         1,602,776    3,274            -                    -                    -                    1,610,017     (39,983)            17                
Opportunity Fund - Other 100,000          -                   -                 -                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (100,000)          -                   
TOTAL OTHER CAPITAL 1,900,000       1,612,425    5,913         1,603,253    3,274            -                    -                    -                    -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                1,612,440     (287,560)          15                

TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS 17,509,322     3,285,035    86,964       1,717,083    230,302        191,169        189,807        950,379        -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                3,365,704     (14,143,618)     80,669         

NET AFTER CAPITAL PROJECTS (1,315,700)      (1,250,241)   (316,225)    (1,354,103)   382,636        1,681,573     579,224        (641,122)       -                  -                 -                   -                  -                -                313,844        1,629,544         1,567,585    



 

 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 

ARCHITECTURAL/ENGINEERING SERVICES  

COLUMBIA STREET PROPERTIES ADAPTIVE REUSE FEASIBILITY 

STUDY 

 

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority  

One Campbell Parkway, Suite A 

East Wenatchee, WA 98802 

509-884-4700 / Stacie@CDRPA.org 

 

 

Issue Date:  August 19, 2021 

Responses Due By: September 17, 2021  

mailto:Stacie@CDRPA.org


SECTION I: PURPOSE 

The Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority is requesting statements of qualifications 

from qualified and licensed architectural/engineering (A/E) firms to complete an adaptive 

reuse feasibility study and site master plan for the former Wells and Wade/Lineage 

Logistics buildings located on Columbia Street between Orondo Ave and Yakima Ave in 

Wenatchee, WA.   

The adaptive reuse feasibility study will identify the highest and best use for these 

buildings and will include design options that are innovative and would showcase the 

unique construction of the buildings while maintaining the apple packing history of the 

District.  The intent is to bridge downtown to the waterfront while adding economic value 

to the region.   

SECTION II:  PROJECT BACKGROUND 

In 2019, the Port of Chelan invested $4.5 million to purchase nine buildings totaling 

100,000 square feet that bridge the downtown Wenatchee core to the waterfront.  The 

buildings were historically used for cold storage and fruit packing activities.  Given the 

favorable zoning, which allows for a wide range of uses including manufacturing, light 

industrial, office, multifamily, bars/restaurants, gyms, and wineries/breweries the Port 

planned to subdivide the property and get it back into the hands of private developers.  In 

2020, the Port identified a developer for the northern 37,000 square feet building who 

plans to invest $12-14 million to create a family fun center.  The Port is actively working 

with interested parties to transform the two southern buildings totaling 21,000 square feet 

to a light industrial/commercial use.  The remaining center section consists of six 

character rich buildings totaling 42,000 square feet (Buildings A-F shown on Exhibit A). 

Building off the success of the neighboring Pybus Public Market these buildings would be 

the ideal complimentary mixed-use development.  

SECTION III:  SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The following scope of services is intended to encompass the services required of the 

selected firm for meetings, site assessment, adaptive reuse planning, schematic design, 

and report preparation. 

1. Assessment of Buildings and Site.  The selected architectural firm will be 

responsible for assessing the current conditions of buildings A-F and shall 

identify and/or review the following items (from an 

engineering/architectural/code compliance perspective): 

a. Existing and likely structural deficiencies and opportunities  

b. Existing building systems and likely code deficiencies, including, but not 

limited to: 

i. Electrical systems and wiring of the building 

ii. Mechanical systems 

iii. Plumbing systems 



iv. Fire protection systems 

v. Roof system 

vi. Any other building code violations 

c. Existing and potential environmental deficiencies (mold, asbestos, lead, 

etc).  Note:  a Phase I ESA was complete prior to the purchase and is 

available for review. 

d. Main utility services (Water, sewer, power, storm, etc) 

e. Parking area pavement, walks, and curbing 

f. Existing and potential universal accessibility barriers and ADA-

compliance needs 

g. Energy efficiency improvements 

h. Review site access, traffic circulation, and parking (on site and nearby) 

i. Any other related items reasonably connected to the above items 

 

2. Adaptive Reuse Assessment and Site Master Plan.  Analyze the buildings 

and property, considering any issues identified through the existing 

building/site assessment and identify appropriate potential uses and how the 

existing buildings can be best repurposed in a functional and logical manner.  

Conduct research on the regional market as well as analyze the estimated cost 

of improvements versus the projected ROI to identify the highest and best uses 

for these buildings.  A focus shall remain on filling market needs and creating 

spaces for living wage jobs.  All suggested uses shall be complimentary with 

neighboring developments and consistent with the following documents: 

 

a. City of Wenatchee Central business District Subarea Plan dated April 

2007; and 

b. Section 10.40020 - Columbia Street Overlay of the City of Wenatchee’s 

Zoning Code. 

Renderings, schematic design, and cost estimates for the improvements of at 

least three adaptive reuse concepts shall be presented to the CDRPA at the 

project mid-point for feedback and input.  The CDRPA Board will provide 

feedback on each concept and select their preferred concept.  The final report 

shall include a site master plan for the preferred adaptive reuse concept.   The 

site master plan will be used to attract potential developers and/or to help 

secure funding sources/plans to perform the proposed improvements. 

3. Meetings.  Attend project meetings with representatives from the Chelan 

Douglas Regional Port Authority to discuss proposed uses, desired 

renovations, required restorations, and subsequent design progress.  Attend 

CDRPA Board of Directors meetings to present your initial and final findings.   

 

 



SECTION IV:  CONTENTS OF PROPOSAL 

1. Cover Letter:  Provide letter of introduction with a brief description of your firm, 

indicating the primary office location for the performance of this project, the type of 

firm, areas of specialization, the project lead, and any other staff members that 

would be involved in the completion of the study. 

2. Firm Overview:  Provide general information about the history of the firm, 

overview of qualifications pertinent to this RFP, demonstration of comparable 

services for similar structures and any other information related to the firm’s 

experience with Adaptive Reuse Feasibility Studies.   

3. Key Personnel:  Include the biographies of personnel to be assigned to the project 

and indicate what role they will assume in the completion of the study.  Directly 

outline how the experience and skills of these individuals would be utilized to 

complete the scope of work outlined herein. 

4. Sub-Consultants: List and provide qualifications for all sub-consultants proposed 

to provide services. 

5. Contact Information:  Include a company name and address, a contact name and 

titled of the principal individual responsible for the RFP response, appropriate 

phone numbers, email addresses, and website addresses.  Identify and provide 

contact information for all sub-consultants. 

6. Understanding of Scope of Work:  Provide the Firm’s understanding of the 

scope of work as described herein. 

7. Project Schedule:  Provide a project schedule detailing how the following 

milestones will be met: 

 September 17, 2021 – Proposal Submission Deadline 

 September 28, 2021 – Announcement of Consultant Selection 

 October 5, 2021 – Detailed Fee Estimate Provided to CDRPA 

 October 12, 2021 – Contract Executed 

 October 29, 2021 – Project Kick Off Meeting Completed 

 December 14, 2021 – Present Preliminary Options to CDRPA Board 

 January 31, 2022 – Final Feasibility Study Report and Master Site Plan Due 

 February 8, 2022 – Final CDRPA Board Presentation  

8. References:  For the prime consultant and any sub-consultants, provide reference 

information and brief project descriptions for at least three (3) recent or current 

clients.  Reference projects should be completed within the last five (5) years and 

be similar in nature to the project described in this RFQ.  Please include the 

following information:  

 Name of client 

 Name and title of primary contact for client 

 Telephone number, email address, and mailing address of the client’s 

primary contact 

 A brief description of the types of services provided including scope, 

duration, budget, and current status 



 Examples of deliverables (renderings, before/after photos, market 

assessment, master plan, feasibility study, etc). 

SECTION V:  TIMELINE AND SUBMISSION PROCEDURES 

This RFQ will be advertised on August 19 and 26, 2021.  Prospective proposers are 

encouraged to attend a pre-proposal meeting on Wednesday, September 1, 2020 at 2:00 

pm on-site at 1 E Orondo Ave Wenatchee, WA 98801.  The pre-proposal meeting will 

provide an opportunity for prospective proposers to inspect the buildings first hand and 

become familiar with all conditions that may affect the performance and cost of the 

professional services contract.  If a prospective proposer is unable to attend the site tour, 

a virtual meeting (not tour) can be requested.  However, individual access to the buildings 

will not be given.   

Qualified applicants shall submit three (3) hard copies and one (1) electronic copy (USB 

drive or email) to: 

Stacie de Mestre 

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 

1 Campbell Parkway, Suite A 

East Wenatchee, WA 98802  

Stacie@cdrpa.org 

All submittals must be received no later than Friday September 17, 2021 prior to 2:00 

PM.   

SECTION VI:  SELECTION CRITERIA    

Firms will be selected based on the statement of qualifications submittal.  There will be 

no interviews.  The selection criteria and weighting factor will be: 

• Qualifications of key personnel including sub-consultants (30%)  

• Experience with adaptive reuse feasibility studies, quality of deliverables (30%)     

• Demonstrated staffing and resource capacity to meet CDRPA timeline (20%) 

• Understanding of historic building elements and architectural features (10%) 

• Plan to understand the market needs of the Wenatchee Valley region (10%) 

 

All questions shall be directed to Stacie de Mestre via email at 

Stacie@CDRPA.org 

 

mailto:Stacie@CDRPA.org


EX
H

IB
IT

 A
 - 

C
O

LU
M

BI
A

 S
TR

EE
T 

PR
O

PE
RT

IE
S 

A
D

A
PT

IV
E 

RE
U

SE
 F

EA
SI

BI
LI

TY
 S

TU
D

Y

rasplund
Polygon Line

rasplund
Rectangle

rasplund
Typewriter
Bldg A

rasplund
Rectangle

rasplund
Typewriter
Bldg B

rasplund
Text Box

rasplund
Text Box

rasplund
Text Box

rasplund
Rectangle

rasplund
Rectangle

rasplund
Typewriter
Bldg C

rasplund
Typewriter
Bldg D

rasplund
Typewriter
Bldg E

rasplund
Typewriter
Bldg F

rasplund
Typewriter
Bldg G

rasplund
Typewriter
Bldg I

rasplund
Rectangle

rasplund
Rectangle

rasplund
Rectangle

rasplund
Rectangle

rasplund
Rectangle

rasplund
Rectangle



PANGBORN INDUSTRIAL SERVICE AREA: 
EXPANSION STUDY
BERK CONSULTING, JULY 2021

1



BACKGROUND

 Pangborn Memorial Airport is an essential public facility

 The Pangborn Industrial Service Area (PISA) was created in 2012, with a boundary expansion in 2018

 This proposal adds 83 acres to the existing boundary (~5% growth)

2



PROPOSAL DESCRIPTION

3

 Adding 83 acres in two areas: to the west and 
southeast of the current PISA.

 61.5 acres to become part of runway and protective 
zones for the airport, not further developed for 
industrial purposes

 80 acres currently zoned for commercial agriculture

 Boundary change is a docket to amend the UGA, the 
Planned Action, and the Comprehensive Plan 



REVIEW OF PROPOSAL

1. Review the policy framework to confirm alignment with state and regional planning

2. Industrial Land Capacity Analysis to test the impact of this expansion on industrial lands in Douglas County

3. De-designation Analysis to confirm compatibility of the 80 acres of commercial agriculture land for de-
designation

4



POLICY REVIEW:
KEY FINDINGS

5

Findings

 GMA policies discuss the designation of essential 
public facilities, sizing urban areas according to 
need, and encouraging multimodal transportation 
networks. 

 County policies support economic growth and 
diversification, as well as the encouragement of 
existing businesses to expand operations. 



LAND CAPACITY 
ANALYSIS
KEY FINDINGS

6

Findings

 The existing land developed for industrial use is 
undersized for its current 2020 population as well as 
its 2040 population target in Douglas County.

 Most of the area added in the proposal is supporting 
an essential public facility. This expansion supports 
airport compatibility and the Airport Master Plan.

 Land added for developed industrial use does not 
exceed the existing need of industrial lands.  



DE-DESIGNATION 
ANALYSIS

7

Expansion area 
includes 80 
acres zoned 
AC-10. 
Considering 2 
sites for 
analysis.



DE-DESIGNATION 
ANALYSIS: 
PART 1

8

County Comprehensive Plan 5.2.2 Agricultural Resource Lands

County policies require a review of the criteria used to designate lands 
of long-term commercial significance 

1. Prime and unique farmland soils

2. Availability of public facilities for transporting ag products

3. Tax status

4. Availability of public services

5. Relationship to urban growth areas

6. Predominant parcel size

7. Land use settlement patterns

8. Intensity of nearby land uses

9. History of land development permits issued nearby

10. Land values under alternative uses

11. Proximity to markets



DE-DESIGNATION 
ANALYSIS: 
PART 2

9

County Comprehensive Plan 5.2.2 Agricultural Resource 
Lands

The request must be processed as an area-wide 
amendment and meet one of five outlined criteria: 

1. A change in circumstances pertaining to the comprehensive plan or 
public policy related to designation criteria in Section 5.2.2; 

2. A change in circumstances to the subject property, which is beyond the 
control of the landowner and is related to designation criteria in 
Section 5.2.2;

3. An error in designation or failure to designate;
4. New information on natural resource land or critical area status 

related to the designation criteria in Section 5.2.2;

5. A change in population growth rates or the removal is for the purpose 
of expanding an Urban Growth Area (UGA), provided that the 
jurisdiction proposing the de-designation and expansion of the UGA 
has demonstrated that such expansion is consistent with RCW 
36.70A.110 and WAC 365-196-310 (February 8, 2011).  



DE-DESIGNATION 
ANALYSIS: 
SITES 1 & 2

10



DE-DESIGNATION 
ANALYSIS: 
SITES 1 & 2

11



DE-DESIGNATION 
ANALYSIS: 
SITES 1 & 2

12



DE-DESIGNATION 
ANALYSIS: 
SITES 1 & 2

13



DE-DESIGNATION 
ANALYSIS: 
PART 1
AREA-WIDE

14

 Study Sites 
represent 2% of 
the contiguous 
AC-10 acreage

 6.0 acres of apple 
orchards (0.1% of 
County acreage)

 8.8 acres of cherry 
orchards (0.3% of 
County acreage)

 20.3 acres of 
fallow land (1.5% 
of County 
acreage)

 Contiguity not 
affected 



DE-DESIGNATION 
ANALYSIS: 
PART 1
KEY FINDINGS

15

 Area-wide, this change impacts 2% of connected AC-10 acreage and 
does not impact contiguity.

 In total, Study Area includes 0.01% of County acreage on the crop 
production registry. Agricultural economy is not anticipated to 
experience significant impacts by this change.

 Much of the land in the Study Area is no longer in agricultural use and 
is, in fact, already in use by the airport. 

 Site 1 and Site 2 do meet some of the agricultural designation criteria, 
example: soil class, Site 2 is adjacent to larger area of agriculture.

 Site 1 is functionally cut off from contiguous agricultural area. 

 Lands are connected to infrastructure, directly adjacent to the UGA, 
and Site 1 borders a residential neighborhood. 



RESULTS FROM FULL ANALYSIS

 Pangborn Memorial Airport is an essential public facility.

 There are no alternatives for expansion into non-agricultural land. 

 Changes align with the Airport Master Plan, approved by FAA. 

 Capacity analysis demonstrates a need for industrial development. 

 State policy goals for industry, transportation, and  economic development are supported by this proposal.

16



FUTURE CONSIDERATIONS

 Amend the Planned Action for the PISA

 Meant to facilitate development consistent with the ordinance and environmental review from 2012

 Planned Action refers to original UGA boundaries

 Address the parcel fragment that will become surrounded by UGA

 Appears to be a mapping error with a split parcel and could be handled in a future docket

17



QUESTIONS? 

18



19



20



21



22



23



 
Memo 
To:  Board of Directors 

From: Sarah D 

Cc: Jim Kuntz & Trent Moyers 

Date:  August 20, 2021 

Re:  Parking Activity Report – July 2021 

  

Enclosed for your review is July 2021’s Terminal Parking Activity Report 
Packet. Also included is historical parking data. Further discussion can take 
place at the August 24th meeting. 



Gross Fees
26,776.76$     1,477.84$                    
31,168.79$     1,854.92$                    
31,242.32$     2,066.48$                    
89,187.87$     5,399.24$                    

Other
Scan to Pay Apps Website Widget Text to Pay Kiosk EGOV

May 203 69 81 208 6 567
June 196 133 54 222 14 619
July 239 140 60 202 7 648
Total 638 342 195 632 27 1834

Paid Paid Amount YTD Outstanding
May 180 2,031.00$                    
June 210 2,189.00$                    
July 129 1,376.00$                    
Total 519 5,596.00$                    256

Delinquency Rate:

Note: The Regional Port's management of the terminal parking began in May 2021.

3.0829%

Total 83,788.63$                                            

# of Transactions by Payment Method 
Arrive Flash

Total

Number of Tickets
YTD Outstanding Amount

2,837.00$                                              

July 29,175.84$                                            

Pangborn Memorial Airport Terminal Parking Lot
2021 Year-to-Date

Overall Parking Revenues
Net

June
May

29,313.87$                                            
25,298.92$                                            



Num. of transactions
Income: Long Term Widget 8,150.00$          140

Long Term Scan to Pay Apps 9,540.00$          197
Short Term Scan to Pay Apps 988.00$             42

18,678.00$        379
Fees:

Short Term 74.56$               
Long Term 1,560.53$          

1,635.09$          8.75%

Net: 17,042.91$        

Num. of transactions
Income: Text to Pay $2,000.00 60

Kiosk $8,870.00 202
10,870.00$        262

Customer Fees: Text to Pay 21.00$               
Kiosk -$                    

21.00$               

Merchant Fees: 387.61

Net: 10,482.39$        

Payable to Flash (Pre-Tax): 21.00$               

Income: Credit Card 838.00$             107 LT 1,090.00$                             
Cash/Check 538.00$             22 ST 286.00$                                 

1,376.00$          210 1,376.00$                             

Merchant Fees: USIO 43.78$               

Net: 1,332.22$          

Payments made through EGOV site via www.cdrpa.org: $318.32

31,242.32$        
29,175.84$        Total Net Revenue Received:

Month of July 2021
Arrive

Tap to Pay Apps & Widget on PMA Website

Flash Parking
Text to Pay & Terminal Kiosk (Long Term Only)

OmniPark Enforcement
PayMyNotice Webpage or Mail in Payment

Notices by Lot

Other

Total Gross Revenue Received:



Credit Net to Credit Net to Credit Net to
Gross Card Fees CDRPA Gross Card Fees CDRPA Gross Card Fees CDRPA

May 1,475.85       214.22         860.51          40,292.05     1,010.96     26,611.83     39,916.82     1,095.11      26,393.24     
June 2,661.46       197.06         1,659.61       37,591.50     1,088.48     24,664.86     34,758.78     1,087.52      22,808.57     
July 4,134.35       125.00         2,766.10       36,938.08     1,016.83     24,386.20     34,821.94     1,093.80      22,887.38     
August 8,138.50       166.75         5,440.08       33,294.64     988.63        21,956.70     37,072.09     1,041.48      24,484.45     
September 9,080.66       401.58         5,943.00       36,857.08     919.57        24,349.08     39,698.71     1,137.98      26,184.68     
October 13,355.26     407.12         8,874.90       44,336.91     1,091.00     31,037.51     42,902.96     984.37         30,089.91     
November 15,032.32     489.51         9,930.66       44,111.57     1,451.86     33,541.18     42,066.54     1,171.87      32,132.09     
December 13,803.05     425.87         9,095.33       41,556.29     1,500.63     31,655.94     35,229.21     1,255.81      26,732.21     
January 12,975.99     396.23         8,532.73       34,184.84     1,290.41     25,967.41     35,603.51     1,090.48      27,151.52     
February 19,494.00     301.21 13,093.30     40,893.53     1,138.28     31,275.66     38,916.82     894.46         29,910.90     
March 25,932.59     1,052.38      16,770.43     16,685.77     1,312.32     12,212.61     46,664.51     1,053.35      35,917.38     
April 27,158.20     945.13 17691.61 1,239.37       659.00        493.97          36,310.54     1,209.36      27,610.46     

153,242.23   5,122.06      100,658.26   407,981.63   13,467.97   288,152.95   463,962.43   13,115.59    332,302.79   
Replublic Share 47,461.91     106,360.71   118,544.05   

Comments:
Prior to the 2017/2018 fiscal year, minimum payments of $11,500 were received monthly, with an annual reconciliation and bulk payment.
70% of receipts up to $225,000
80% of receipts over $225,000 Gross CC Net

2019 472,473.50   13,315.61   338,793.56   
2020 160,684.96   6,827.12     114,519.84   

2020/2021 2019/2020 2018/2019

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority
Parking Revenue Historical Data





























Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 
Calendar of Events 8/20/2021

Date Day Event / Location / Time Attending Cami RSVP arrangements if applicable
August 24 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 

August 25 Wednesday
PUD Discovery Center Ribbon Cutting Rocky Reach Dam 9-
10am

August 25 Wednesday
Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory Committee; 
2:30 pm

August 26-29 Thur-Sunday NCW Fair Waterville (CDRPA Booth)
August 28 Saturday Wenatchee Wine & Food Festival; Town Toyota; 6-9pm
September 2 Thursday Economic Dev. Meeting; 2:00 PM
September 6 Monday Labor Day/Office Closed
September 8 Wednesday NCWEDD Meeting
September 9 Thursday CDTC Board Meeting 9:00 AM
September 14 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 
September 15 Wednesday GWATA Board Meeting; 3:00 PM

September 14-15 Tues-Wed AMCOM; Advanced Manufacturing trade show; Tacoma
September 21 Tuesday Wenatchee Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 
September 23 Thursday Economic Dev. Meeting; 2:00 PM

September 23-24 Thurs-Friday WPPA Environmental Seminar; Alderbrook
September 28 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 

September 29 Wednesday
NCW Tech Alliance Innovator Awards Lunch; Convention 
Center; 11:30 am Port table 

September 29 Wednesday
Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory Committee; 
2:30 pm

October 4-6 Mon-Wednesday WAMA Conference; Alderbrook
October 12 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 
October 13 Wednesday Partner Breakfast; Convention Center; 7:30am-9am Center Confirmed John Mitchell Confirmed Speaker
October 14 Thursday Ec. Dev. Lunch; Convention Center; 11:30am-1pm Center Confirmed John Mitchell Confirmed Speaker
October 13 Wednesday NCWEDD Meeting
October 14 Thursday CDTC Board Meeting 9:00 AM
October 18 Monday Board Retreat 9:00 AM
October 19 Tuesday Wenatchee Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 
October 20 Wednesday GWATA Board Meeting; 3:00 PM
October 21-22 Thur-Friday WPPA Small Ports;Enzian Leavenworth
October 26 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM Commissioner Spugeon Ex. Ab.



Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 
Calendar of Events 8/20/2021

Date Day Event / Location / Time Attending Cami RSVP arrangements if applicable

October 27 Wednesday
Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory Committee; 
2:30 pm

October 28-30 Thurs-Saturday PMA Fresh Summit; New Orleans
November 9 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 
November 10 Wednesday NCWEDD Meeting
November 16 Tuesday Wenatchee Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 
November 17 Wednesday GWATA Board Meeting; 3:00 PM
November 18 Thursday CDTC Board Meeting 9:00 AM
November 23 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 

November 24 Wednesday
Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory Committee; 
2:30 pm

November 25 Thursday Thanksgiving/Office Closed
November 26 Friday Day After Thanksgiving/Office Closed
December 1-2 Wed - Thur WPPA Finance Seminar; Hyatt Regency Hotel Bellevue
December 1-3 Wed-Friday WPPA Annual Meeting; Hyatt Regency Hotel Bellevue
December 4-6 Sat-Monday American Craft Spirits Convention;Louisville
December 8 Wednesday NCWEDD Meeting
December 9 Thursday CDTC Board Meeting 9:00 AM
December 14 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 
December 15 Wednesday GWATA Board Meeting; 3:00 PM
December 21 Tuesday Wenatchee Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 
December 23 Thursday Christmas Holiday Observed Office Closed
December 24 Friday Christmas Holiday Observed Office Closed
December 28 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 

December 29 Wednesday
Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory Committee; 
2:30 pm

December 31 Friday New Years Day 2022 Observed/Office Closed  
2022
January 12 Wednesday Partner Breakfast;Convention Center; 7:30am-9am Center Confirmed
January 13 Thursday Ec. Dev. Lunch; Convention Center; 11:30am-1pm Center Confirmed
April 13 Wednesday Partner Breakfast;Convention Center; 7:30am-9am Center Confirmed
April 14 Thursday Ec. Dev. Lunch; Convention Center; 11:30am-1pm Center Confirmed
July 13 Wednesday Partner Breakfast;Convention Center; 7:30am-9am Center Confirmed
July 14 Thursday Ec. Dev. Lunch; Convention Center; 11:30am-1pm Center Confirmed
October 26 Wednesday Partner Breakfast;Convention Center; 7:30am-9am Center Confirmed



Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 
Calendar of Events 8/20/2021

Date Day Event / Location / Time Attending Cami RSVP arrangements if applicable
October 27 Thursday Ec. Dev. Lunch; Convention Center; 11:30am-1pm Center Confirmed


	08-24-2021 Agenda
	08-24-2021 SUGGESTED MOTIONS
	Board of Directors   SUGGESTED MOTIONS
	August 24, 2021

	08-10-2021 Meeting Minutes
	Board of Directors
	Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority
	Meeting Minutes
	August 10th, 2021


	CDRPA Resolution 2021-15 Voiding Check 8274
	July 2021 Calendar
	Sheet1

	VI. 1 DC Fire Interlocal Amendment
	VI. 2 DC Sewer Connection
	GWID Easement Request Memo
	To:
	From:
	Date:
	Re:

	GWID Easement map
	pisa_sewer_amendment 2 DRAFT_2021_V3(002)

	VI. 3 Fuel Truck Bid Memo
	To:
	From:
	Date:
	Re:

	VI. 4 Authorization to Seek Bids - CTC Demolition and Restoration and Salvage Equipment Purchase - Memo
	VI. 5 Cashmere Mill Site Wetland Improvements - Authorization to Award Contract - Memo
	VI. 6 Partners in ED - DC US 2-97 Project Request
	Partners Memo
	VI. 6 Partners in ED - DC US 2-97 Project Request
	Partners In Economic Development - Local Govt.Municipalities 10.23
	DC Cascade Ave FINALApplicationProjectDescription
	DC Northern Fruit Commitment Letter
	DC Northern Fruit Attachment 1


	VII. 7 CDRPA Budget vs Actual 06.30.2021 (002)
	Detail 2021

	VIII. 1 INFO RFQ Columbia Street Properties Adaptive Reuse Feasibility Study
	INFO RFQ Columbia Street Properties Adaptive Reuse Feasibility Study
	RFQ Columbia Street Properties Adaptive Reuse Feasibility Study - Exhibit A (002)

	VIII. INFO PMA Industrial Service Area Study
	VIII. INFO July Parking Report wMemo (002)
	Summary
	Combined

	VIII. INFO US Bank Statement
	VIII. INFO NCWEDD NGIN Inclusive ED Program Email
	X. CDRPA Event Calendar
	Sheet1




